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The core of our corporate brand is “Chinese herbal medicine”. The core of our corporate culture is
“culture of Chinese herbal medicine”.

Since the creation of the Bawang brand, with its inherited Chinese herbal medicine, the Group has been
using its solid knowledge and intensive experience to promote the culture of Chinese herbal medicine,
strengthen its brand, and extend the influence of Chinese national brand.

The Group has been focusing on the research, development, manufacturing and sales of high-quality
natural Chinese herbal products with good value. The Group strives to capture the essence of the
Chinese herbal medicine with more than 5,000 years of history and introduce natural and healthy
products and lifestyle to consumers. The Group aims to promote its national brand to the global market.
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Financial Highlights

B 75 48 2

2013 2012
—2-= —T=F
FE FE
Continuing Operations RMB’000 RMB’000
BEREXER ARBT T AREBTT
(Restated)
(ggE7)
Revenue EER 477,657 538,372
Cost of Sales HE KA (246,066) (312,609)
Gross Profit EF 231,591 225,763
Selling & distribution costs HERDHAX (295,024) (551,126)
Administrative expenses 1THE A (58,583) (88,040)
Loss from operations EEER (136,189) (436,539)
Taxation I8 - (82,605)
Loss attributable to equity shareholders EREA ARGER (136,891) (519,875)
Loss per share (RMB yuan) BEAREE(ARET) (0.047) (0.179)
Gross margin EFE 48.5% 41.9%
Net loss ratio FEEE —28.7% -96.6%
Revenue by Product Category
WA R E B A
83.8% 83.0%
12.5%
9.0% 4.5%

2H2013
(RMB’000) F—=
(AR T T)
{ N
Shampoo & hair-care products 206,146 194,301 225,428 221,238
. HEBEEER
Skincare products 14,486 19,941 35,400 31,908
EEER
Other household and
personal care products 16,280 26,503 4 951 19,447
HttRAEAZEER
Total
axt 236,912 240,745 265,779 272,593
. J
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Financial Highlights
MEHE

Revenue by Brand

LON:3.n) - ag

67.7%

65.5%

16.9%

19.1%

2H2013
(RMB’000) —2—=
(AR T ) T F
%a;ang 170,494 152,986 193,705 159,080
Royal Wind 33,920 46,719 38,946 63,950
BRE
. Herborn 13,555 19,018 31,759 28,935
rEE
. Litao” 17,873 21,213 (2,413) 17,796
BE
& Smerry 2832
u B A 1,045 809 3,782 ,83
Total®
&t 236,887 240,745 265,779 272,593
&
Notes: B sE :
1. The negative revenue in the second half of 2012 represents the value of goods 1. ZE—ZHETEFHNRABBKRE ABLEH
returned to the Group. BRE-
2. The total amount does not include the revenue of Dr. Gao hand-wash liquid in the 2. AiteBETRIERE

amount of RMB25,000 in the second half of 2013.
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Corporate Information
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£5

BITES

bR RUR (=)

BLE

h/NE
(RZEBE—=FRA-F+N\B&HEMT

BEER

FERITESE

20 &
(RZZE—=FFRA=-F+/\HEE)

BIUFERITES

ZR 12 & 18 = pnp, cPa, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (PEE)
PR 7 A%

EREEE

FREIEIE L pho, oPa, Foca, Fois, Fes pe) (£ /&)
PR 7 A%

FNEESE
T NE(EE)

BExE
BR A%

RELES
bR RUR (=)
PR A A%
NAMWE
= ERCPA
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BEE
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Corporate Information

LFEH

Registered office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal place of business in the PRC

6/F, 181 Tangle Road
Tangyong Village, Xinshi
Baiyun District
Guangzhou

510410

PRC

Place of business in Hong Kong

Suite B, 16/F
Ritz Plaza

122 Austin Road
Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share
registrar and transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

AR SRE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PEERERME

&=

=

HERE
T B A
HLAPL1815%61E
4 510410

EREENY

BB

JLEE

EN/]
]+ 3B 1225%
B L
16EB=E

BEEFERTE

BERERRESFELBRAA

BB

T
ERFKEFR1835
A M AL

177121716 F

FEHERZBFERCAE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Annual Report 2013 =& — = £ E 5



Corporate Information
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Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board of directors of BaWang International (Group)
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | present the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Board reports that the total revenue of the continuing
operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
was RMB477.7 million, representing a decrease of 11.3% from
RMB538.4 million for 2012. The operating loss from the
continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 was RMB136.2 million, representing a substantial
improvement by 68.8% as compared with the operating loss of
RMB436.5 million in 2012. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the net loss from the continuing operations of the Group
was RMB136.9 million, as compared with the net loss of
RMB519.9 million in 2012. For further information on the operating
performance of the Group, please refer to the Financial Review
section of this annual report.

During the year, the Group continued to exercise stringent cost
control measures, along with sales growth operating strategies.
Amid the slowdown in the PRC macro-economic recovery in the
first quarter of 2013, the Board decided to continue to optimise
the workforce and streamline the production process. The
continuous implementation of the value-chain-oriented business
model known as “Project Win-win (F&HIEH)” and the newly-
implemented performance-based rewards system known as “Job
Target and Responsibility Statement (L{EBZMEESHTE),
together with the enhancement of the operational efficiency and
the effectiveness as a result of the Sales Automation Management
System (SAMS), the Group was able to reduce the operating
costs, resulting in the improvement in the profitability of the Group
from the continuing operations in 2013. The business operations
of the Group remained stable throughout the rest of the year
notwithstanding the significant downsizing of the work force in
May 2013.
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Looking forward, the strategic directions to sustain and develop
the business of the Group in the volatile business environments
will focus on two areas. In the short-run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience
in both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales
growth momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’
confidence on the Group. In the long-run, the Group will continue
to focus on strengthening the business model and positioning to
increase the market share from domestic and international
competitors, maintaining a multi-brand and multi-product strategy
in HPC sectors, and regaining its leadership role in the branded
Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take these opportunity to
express our gratitude to all Shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014

RERK  ETRBER A LM B L &
RES #RFMEREMAXE BT
RAEPEMSTH REHME  A5H
BEUTER: #BEBEANINMEEZRRE
RENEETERAEERRNEE
BB I SHE IR R B BAM A F B
ARREAAREEREEREDL - BLEHM
FOAKERESEREREN D
B A oM 8 F LASE T 35 (0 B8 21T
BAAZEEERmENMERZHRLLNT
BIRAS  BERAPEERE N EA#
BEMBELE-

ERLEE RARRESEATHHER
RXBAEENZRBEER TP #E
BoRITCBEALMNEE  BARD
MR -

R R&UR
E

FE —ET-HF=A=-+/\H

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 8 T BIBR (£ E) X R AR A 7



During the year under review, the Group took a series of
measures and implemented a series of project for maintaining its
sustainability and regaining sales growth and profitability of the
business.

The Group has expanded the scope of Project Excel (28 )
for improvement in profitability of the production centres. Apart
from optimising the organisational resources through reducing a
substantial number of staff members in the production and logistic
departments, the Group has also changed its staff compensation
system from fixed monthly wages to performance-based system.
The attitude of the workers towards their work has improved.
Additionally, stringent measures have been taken to enhance the
management of our research and development, production
process, environmental protection, and quality assurance
management. As a result, the Group was awarded four major
certificates in recognition of our significant achievements in quality
control and product safety.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In early March 2013, the Group rolled out a sentimental marketing
and promotional campaign with the theme “Shampooing for your
love (BE—/K58)". The campaign was aimed to foster the
relationships among the family members and friends and at the
same time convey the advantages and knowledge of using hair
care with herbal shampoo products. The showcase events were
held in six major cities in China during the festive days whereby
the participants were doing shampoos for their loved one on the
stage. The on-site atmosphere was both emotional and
overwhelming. The video scripts of the activities were popular on
the web, which have positively promoted the brand and the
corporate image of the Group. Apart from the brand ambassador
of Bawang products — Mr. Jackie Chan, a total of more than 40
other celebrities, comprising singers and movie pop stars, joined
in the events at different stages in various cities. The Group
obtained the top prize for this campaign as the Best Public
Relations Case in the Marketing Communication Competition of
the 5th China Advertiser Summit.

The Group managed to expand the sales channels and increase
the revenue streams of Bawang branded products. In late June
2013, the Group launched a brand new high-end herbal shampoo
series, namely, Bawang Cardamom Essence Shampoo series
(F T S ZEFEEEEE20K) for ladies, which help relieving the problems
of hair-falling, grey hair, dry hair and dandruff of female users.
Both Mr. Jackie Chan and Ms. Kim Hui Seon continued to be the

brand ambassadors during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As of 31 December 2013, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised 513 distributors and 46 KA retailers, covering 26
provinces and four municipalities. Furthermore, the products of
the Group are sold in Hong Kong, Singapore, Myanmar, Thailand,
Malaysia, Brunei and Australia.

During the year under review, the Group continued to promote
the rebranded image of Royal Wind with the main theme “Zero-
burden Eliminate Dandruff by Traditional Chinese Medicine (F Z&
ERBZEEHE)” with products. Mr. Han Geng continued to be the
brand ambassador during the year under review.

As of 31 December 2013, the Royal Wind brand distribution
network comprised approximately 476 distributors and 42 KA
retailers, covering 26 province and four municipalities.

In July 2013, the Group expanded the portfolio of Litao into a
complete series of natural-based household products, consisting
of shampoo, shower gels, and laundry detergent. Additionally,
Bawang toothpaste and Dr. Gao hand-wash liquid were rolled at
the same time. All these products target consumers living in the
second-tier or third-tier cities in China. The successful launch of
these products series has fulfilled part of the Company’s goal to
increase the market presence in the low-tier cities of China. As
these products are principally sold through traditional sales
channels, the Group does not need to incur significant selling and
distribution costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As of 31 December 2013, the Litao products distribution network
comprised 396 distributors covering 26 provinces and four
municipalities.

The Group’s Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products target
office ladies in the age range of 25 to 45 who have relatively high
disposable income and are dedicated to pursue a healthy and
natural lifestyle. The Group has been appointed for the fourth time
as the exclusive sponsor of skincare products to the Miss World
Pageant in 2013 in China. Apart from providing our Herborn
Chinese herbal skincare products to the contestants, we also
provided a series of skincare seminars for the contestants, so as
to allow them to understand the concepts and benefits of using
traditional Chinese medicine for skin-care. In the second half of
2013, the Group invited over 1,000 distributors and/or specialty
shop owners to participate in a brand strategy meeting for
introducing the new marketing and promotion plans.

As of 31 December 2013, the sales and distribution network for
the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products is comprised of
approximately 93 distributors and one KA retailers covering 27
provinces and four municipalities and also approximately 70
counters in department stores and/or hypermarkets. The Group
also had approximately 3,300 counters in cosmetics specialty
shops in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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SYSTEM CERTIFICATE

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co,, Lid.

During the year under review, we continued to sell our natural
plant skincare products series, Smerry which target young female
customers in the age range of 18 to 28 who are dedicated to
pursue a natural and healthy lifestyle. Miss Jing Tian, a popular
artist among the younger generation, continues to be the brand
ambassador during the year under review. With her positive
image, we believe that she will successfully portray the natural
plant essence brand positioning of Smerry thereby enhancing its
brand awareness and recognition. Towards the end of 2013, the
Group took steps to consolidate the channel of Smerry whereby
we have refocused our strategy to develop this brand at the
Watsons chain stores in the first-tier cities of southern China with
a view to improving the same-store sales.

Effective from 1 July 2013, the Group discontinued the business
operations of Bawang Herbal Tea product series. The
discontinuance of this business was due to the continuous
decrease in its sales over the past few years. The Group is in the
course of following up the matters after the discontinuance of this
business.

In a presentation ceremony for the 18th National Top Selling and
Leading Brand Awards held by the Chinese Industrial Information
Issuing Center of the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
Bawang brand product was honored for the second time as the
No. 1 Chinese Herbal Anti-hair Loss Shampoo on China in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year under review, we obtained awards and
recognitions as below:

— A number of Bawang branded products were recognised by
the China Quality Assurance Council as “A Certified Product
with Stable Quality in China (2 BE 2B EAKER) In
March 2013.

— Bawang Guangzhou was recognised by the China Quality
Control Association as “A Reliable Quality and Committed
Enterprise of China (2BE & H{EHHEHDE)” in March
2013.

— Bawang Guangzhou obtained the Quality Management
System Certificate in ISO 9001:2008 Standard (& & &2 82
ZISO 9001:2008fZ#E) in respect of its research and
development, production and service of shampoo, hair care
and skincare products in May 2013.

— Bawang Guangzhou obtained the Environmental
Management System Certificate in ISO 14001:2004
Standard (RIFEIELE KISO 14001:200412%E) in respect of
its research and development, production and service of
shampoo, hair care and skincare products in May 2013.

— Bawang Guangzhou’s production processes for hair care
and skincare products were assessed by SGS in July 2013
as meeting the requirements of US FDA CFSAN (ZEE& &
Lo B EDR L) by reference to Cosmetics Good
Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines 2008.

— Bawang Guangzhou'’s production processes for hair care
and skincare products were assessed by SGS in July 2013
as meeting the requirements of ISO 22716:2007 ({biad R
IFAERRVEIRE 1ISO 22716:200712%) by reference to
Cosmetics Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP).
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—  Ms. WAN Yuhua, CEO of the Group, has been recognised
as the “People of the Economic Year 2013 (2013 B 4% 7%
FFEAY)” in the 11th Chinese Economists Annual
Competition of the China Economic Summit 2013.

— Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Chairman of the Group, has been
honoured as the “Distinguished People of Yunfu City ()24
H4+)” for recognition of his contribution to the
development of the city.

The Board believes that these achievements were recognitions of
the Group’s continuous effort in research, development and
industrialisation of Chinese herbal medicine.

From time to time, we make applications for registration of patents
relating to our research findings on the application of Chinese
herbs in the hair care, skincare and healthcare products. The
successful registration of which is a further recognition for our
continuous dedication to research and development.

The Board considers that the contents of the relevant article
published by Next Magazine on 14 July 2010 are defamatory to
the Group and/or amount to malicious falsehood. Therefore, the
Group commenced legal proceedings in the High Court of Hong
Kong in October 2010 against Next Magazine seeking, inter alia,
damages and an injunction to restrain Next Magazine from
publishing such contents or similar contents. As of the date of this
annual report, the legal proceedings are in progress.
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Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue of the
continuing operations amounted to approximately RMB477.7
million, representing a decrease of 11.3% from approximately
RMB538.4 million in 2012. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the slowdown of the economy in China. Although the Group
has implemented the Project Excel since the second half of 2012
whereby the Group had been optimising the size of its workforce
and streamlining its business operations, the Board believes that
it takes time to see the positive financial effects of this cost-saving
project.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated RMB323.5 million in
revenue, which accounted for approximately 67.7% of the
Group’s total revenue of continuing operations in 2013, and
represented a decrease of 8.3% as compared to 2012.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated RMB80.6 million in revenue, which accounted
for approximately 16.9% of the Group’s total revenue of
continuing operations in 2013, and represented a decrease of
21.6% as compared to 2012.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated RMB39.1 million in
revenue, which accounted for approximately 8.2% of the Group’s
total revenue of continuing operations in 2013, and represented
an increase of 1564.1% as compared to 2012.
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The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated
RMB32.6 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
6.8% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing operations in
2013, and represented a decrease of 46.3% as compared to
2012.

Smerry generated RMB1.9 million in revenue, which accounted
for approximately 0.4% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing
operations in 2013.

We were selling our products through extensive distribution and
retail networks. During the year under review, sales to our
distributors and retailers represented approximately 72.0% and
approximately 28.0% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing
operations respectively.

In 2013, our products were sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Myanmar, Thailand, Malaysia, Brunei and Australia. The sales to
these markets outside the PRC accounted for 3.9% of our total
revenue of continuing operations for 2013.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for 2013 amounted to approximately RMB246.1
million, representing a decrease of 21.3% compared to
RMB312.6 million for 2012. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in direct labour, raw materials and package materials
consumed, partially offset by the increase in manufacturing
expenses.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit increased
to approximately RMB231.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.6% as compared to RMB225.8 million for 2012.
The gross profit margin increased from approximately 41.9% for
2012 to 48.5% for 2013. Such increase was mainly attributable to
the decrease of cost of sales.
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Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately
RMB295.0 million for 2013, representing a decrease of
approximately 46.5% as compared to that for 2012. Such
decrease was mainly due to the effective cost controls leading to
the decrease in depreciation, advertising fee and the saving
achieved in promotion fee and salary through optimising the
resources of promotion staff.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB58.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
33.4% as compared to approximately RMB88.0 million in 2012.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in legal and
professional fees arising from litigation, amortization of share
option cost, communication, auditing fee, non-capitalisable
research and development expenditures, salary and remuneration
payments.

Loss from Operations

The Group recorded an operating loss for the continuing
operations of approximately RMB136.2 milion for 2013, as
compared to the operating loss of approximately RMB436.5
million for 2012. The Group’s operating profit margin improved
from -81.1% for 2012 to —28.5% for 2013. The improvement was
mainly due to the decrease in the effective cost controls leading
to substantial decrease in the overall seling and administrative
expenses.

Income Tax
The Group did not have any income tax in 2013 as compared to
income tax non-cash charge of RMB82.6 million for 2012.

Provision for Inventories

Our accounting policy prescribes that inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”). In the event that
NRV falls below cost, the difference is taken as provision for
inventories. As at 31 December 2013, the amount of provision for
write-down of inventories of the continuing operations was
RMB3.3 million, represented a net decrease in stock provision of
RMB13.6 million when compared to 2012. Such decrease was
mainly due to an increase in NRV following a decrease in selling
expenses.
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Loss for the Year from Continuing Operations

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded loss of RMB136.9 million for 2013, as
compared to the loss of RMB519.9 million for 2012.

During the year under review, the revenue attributable to the
Group’s Herbal tea products amounted to RMBO0.7 million and
this business segment recorded an operating loss of RMB6.6
million. As a result of the unsatisfactory financial performance of
the business of the herbal tea products, the Board decided to
discontinue the production and sales of its herbal tea products
with effect from 1 July 2013. Since then, the Group is able to
focus on the business development of the hair-care and skin-care
products.

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded an attributable loss of RMB143.5 million for 2013, as
compared with the attributable loss of RMB617.6 million for 2012.

The structural reform proposed by the Third Plenary Session of
the 18th Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in
November 2013 is expected to generate positive impact on the
domestic consumption and private investment amounts in 2014.

According to an economic forecast by Asian Development Bank,
the PRC economic growth in 2014 is likely to reach 7.5%, which
is driven by the structural reform and improved exports due to the
better performance of the developed countries. Such level of
economic growth will enable a stable employment rate in China.

However, the upside potential for growth may be limited by the
continuation of credit tapering and the deceleration of the public
investments which are intended to curtail the local government
borrowing. Additionally, China’s exports fell in February 2014 and
swung the trade balance into deficit which raised the prospects of
economic slowdown in the world’s second largest economy.
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The Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach in its
business development model, which could sustain the stability of
the business of the Group.

For Bawang branded products, to boost the sales performance of
the existing product series, the Group plans to roll out in China a
nationwide promotion slogan known as “Scary of hair-fall, use
Bawang Shampoo (lAfiZ + A% E)”. Promotion work will be
conducted to highlight the analogy between Bawang brand name
and anti-hair fall. In terms of promoting the brand recognition and
publicity, the Group will use new media such as micro-blogging,
web-based movie, and digital platform. To increase its sales
revenue, the Group will also expand the traditional sales channel
and will actively develop new channels and new customer groups.

For Royal Wind branded products, the Group will adopt brand
publicity strategy which is similar to that of Bawang brand. We
intend to use the marketing slogan known as “Anti-dandruff in
Speedy and Natural Manner (JR:RZ%EE KK)”. We plan to roll
out large scale promotion campaigns to attract new consumers.

For Herborn branded products, the Group will strengthen the
sales channel management which emphasises direct
communication with the distributors and specialty shop owners
so as to monitor the changes in the market and to make swift
action to satisfy the consumers’ needs. We intend to increase the
market share of this series of products through the promotion of
doing skincare through herbal products by conducting a series of
herbal skincare seminars. The Directors expect that these
activities would enable the consumers understand the basic
principles and in turn attract them to use the products resulting in
the sales increase.

For Smerry branded products, this mass market brand targets
trendy youngsters. We will continue to focus our sales promotional
efforts to expand the chain stores and further increase the same-
store sales growth. To expand the revenue stream, we will explore
internet sales channels which suit the lifestyle of the target
consumers.
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For production management, the Group treats the production
facilities as an “independent profit centre” whereby the production
facilities are required to make profit contribution to the Group. The
Group will conduct the operations with regards to health, safety,
and the environment so as to enhance our corporate image. The
Group will continue to implement its human resource reform
through the motivation of the labor so as to instill a culture of
proactive approach towards work.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries. The Group is open to
explore further business opportunist with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity in hand, nor explore actively
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies
and maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of
liquidity and financial resources is set out below:
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposal
of any of its subsidiaries or associated companies during the year
under review.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Related Hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC,
with most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency
of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the
Group has exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas
countries. The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong
Dollars or United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank
deposits are mostly denominated in Renminbi. The Company will
pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In
addition, the Group paid certain advertising fees in United States
Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors are of the view that
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in
Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the Group’s operational
level is not significant. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
not issued any material financial instruments or entered into any
material contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes.
However, the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure and is prepared to take prudent measures
such as hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

A lawsuit (the “Lawsuit”) had been filed by a distributor against
Bawang Guangzhou in Guangzhou Baiyun District Law Court (the
“District Court”) whereby the distributor alleged that Bawang
Guangzhou is liable to pay an outstanding reimbursement for the
promotion fees of RMB6.4 million pursuant to an agreement
entered into between it and Bawang Guangzhou on 12 April
2010.

On 20 November 2013, the District Law issued a verdict for the
Lawsuit whereby Bawang Guangzhou was ordered to pay the
distributor of an aggregate amount of approximately RMB1.6
million and a legal cost of RMB20,358. The distributor has
subsequently appealed the Lawsuit to a higher court (the
“Appeal”).
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As of the date of this annual report, the Appeal is still in progress.
The date of hearing has not yet been fixed. Given the current
status of the Appeal, the Group is not in the position to predict
the outcome of the Appeal. Nor the Group is able to predict the
amount of the loss that may be incurred by the Group.

As of 31 December 2013, an aggregate provision of RMB1.63
million has been made by the Group arising from the verdict of the
Lawsuit issued by the District Court and no other provision has
been made by the Group in respect of the Appeal.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Bawang Guangzhou
is a defendant in a legal action involving the alleged software
infringement. According to the legal opinion, the total expected
monetary compensation may amount to approximately
RMB200,000 which Bawang Guangzhou is probable to be liable.
A provision for this legal action in the amount of RMB200,000 has
been made by the Group.

As of 31 December 2013, a total provision of RMB1.83 million
has been made for the aforesaid two court cases.

As of 31 December 2013, the capital commitment of the Group
was amounted to RMB14.8 million.

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group will continue to invest in our human
capital so as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our
organisational goal.

In 2013, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and
we required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest accounting standards, taxation
practices and budgetary control.
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As of 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 2,858
employees (31 December 2012: 4,713), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Additionally, the Group also engaged approximately 208
salespersons (31 December 2012: 263) through contract
personnel agency to help with our marketing and promotional
activities. The total personnel expenses of the continuing
operations, comprising wages, salaries and benefits, and equity-
settled share-based payments, amounted to RMB132.6 million
for 2013 (81 December 2012: RMB225.5 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount
of our employees and outsourcing personnel of the continuing
operations as of 31 December 2012 and 2013:
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Full-time employees RES 361 598
Contract personnel BHEE

— Sales persons — {38 1,670 2,551

— Others — Hith 827 1,564

Total employees HWEEAHY 2,858 4,713
Outsourcing personnel SMBAB

— Sales persons — {RiHE 208 263

Total headcount of the continuing HEREER
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The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong joined social insurance
contribution plans and mandatory provident fund scheme
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under
the share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies
play a crucial part in the further development of the Group.
Promising career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits
as well as pleasant working environment are essential factors for
maintenance of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

PEEREE

Corporate Governance Code

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate
governance of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all
such necessary measures in order to promote good corporate
governance.

For corporate governance purpose, the Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company has applied the principles
and in the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year from 1
January 2013 to 31 December 2013.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards for
the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirms
that the Directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six members, including Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”), Chief Financial Officer and three
independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and Senior
Management on pages 50 to 54 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the
Group’s strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and
business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and
supervising the work of management. The management is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the
leadership of the CEO.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
These responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board
and directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and
management of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors. Of which, one independent
non-executive director has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise and the independent non-executive directors represent
at least one-third of the Board. To satisfy the independence
requirement of the independent non-executive Directors, the
Board must determine that the Director does not have any direct
or indirect material relationship with the Group. The Board follows
the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine the
independence of Directors.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Ms. WAN, is the spouse of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Directors
are not otherwise related to each other.

The board held seven meetings in 2013. Each of Mr. CHEN, Ms.
WAN, Mr. WONG, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN
Kaizhi has attended all seven meetings.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) as required by the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the Diversity Policy and review
the same as appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Under code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally facilitated
briefings for directors are arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics are issued to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, all Directors received
regular updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters. Materials on
new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group were provided to the Directors. Directors are requested to
provide their records of training they received to the Company
Secretary for record.

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN Yuhua, and our two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Mr. LI Bida is the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation to
the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2013. During
the meetings, the committee members reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy and made recommendations to the Board. Al
committee members attended these two meetings.
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The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Mr. CHEN is the chairperson of
the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and to make recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-election of
Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2013. During
the meetings, the committee members review the senior
management structure of the Group. All committee members
attended these two meetings.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors and one of whom possesses the appropriate business
and financial experience and skills to understand the accounts of
the Group. The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
and other members are Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. The
Audit Committee was formed in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal controls of the Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
required, amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
the external auditors, to review the Group’s interim and annual
results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of internal
controls of the Group, to review accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group, to engage independent legal or other
advisers as it determines necessary and to perform investigations.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope
and findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of
the external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’s independence, objectivity
and the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and
interim results announcements of the Company;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the
Group

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report with the
management and the external auditors and recommended its
adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit Committee
have been addressed by the senior management of the Company.
The work and findings of the Audit Committee have been reported
to the Board. During the year, no issues were brought to the
attention of the senior management of the Company and the
Board of sufficient significance for disclosure in this annual report.

The audit committee held four meetings in 2013. Each of Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi have attended
all four meetings.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Up to the date of this annual report, the audit committee met
once to review the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and the compliance of the Company with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013, is set out on pages 55 to
56 of the annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a sound
and effective system of internal control of the Group so as to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group
in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and
complying with the applicable laws and regulations. During the
year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions
on the adequacy of internal control and procedures. Through the
audit committee of the Group, the Board review the effectiveness
of these systems on a regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEELIHRE

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
Shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of
corporate communication documents to Shareholders; (i) the
annual general meeting provides a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (i) latest and key
information of the Group are available on the website of the
Company; (iv) regular press conferences and briefing meetings
with investors, Shareholders and analysts are set up from time to
time on updated information of the Group, and; (v) the Company’s
registrars serve the Shareholders respecting all share registration
matters. The Board welcomes views of shareholders and
encourages them to attend general meetings to raise any
concerns they might have with the Board or the management
directly. The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen and/
or other members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee will normally attend the annual general meetings and
other shareholders’ meetings of the Company to answer
questions raised.

Save for the disclosure below, all the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN,
Ms. WAN, Mr. WONG, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. CHEN Kaizhi and
Mr. LI Bida have attended the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer. He assists the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that the policy and procedures of the Board
are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEELIHRE

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +8562 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association (the “Articles”). An up-to-
date Articles is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for
further details of their rights.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year
ended 31 December 2013 in relation to audit and non-audit
services are RMB673,000 and RMB119,000 respectively.

i R A2 A
RIBMMER 355 T LR +5 2 K
AEMEREAGREEDBTRA

R EREAZERARD 7@5%&%%%7(
G FERRAESTXNARIWERLE
HEK o

BREARAQAABTEHEEDESHRAKREFH

NRESGEHERNER -

AR FFIBAT ¢

HoHE BBNERDHE
] = A 8 1225
BHHLO16EBE
(WHEANBRARIWE
mEREE)

EE: +8523114 8819

BEFE 1 IR@1338.hk

EOBEFEAR ARrtEHHEEKETR
FHERNES dABER(HAAER])
B B 7 AR AR R] 2R 7R R A8 U K B ZX T
MULER) - WRITA 2 AMERE AR
SEREENNFE -

BE-F-=4#+t-A=t-REE.
AR RIS /8 4 9108 8 57 1 B £ A
M(E®) BADEBERD A
BRI BRGSO D B A AR
#673,0007T 1 A K #5119,0007T °

Annual Report 2013 —ZE — =% Fi 33



Report of the Directors
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The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing,
manufacturing, trading and distribution of Chinese herbal
products, including shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-
care products, herbal tea products and household cleaning
products. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out on pages 157 to 158 of this annual report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the
Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
57 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2013 are set out on pages 61
and 146 of this annual report respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions amounted to RMB1,302.5 million.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, sales made
to the Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 14.8% and 5.3%, respectively of the
total sales of the Group. The Group purchased approximately
36.7% and 9.9%, respectively of its goods and services from its
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHS

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest customers
and five largest suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of this
annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital And Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 27 to 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Report of the Directors
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the
Shares held by the public as required under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of
this annual report.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to RMBO.2 million.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the year were:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
Ms. WAN Yuhua
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi

(Resigned on 28 May 2013)
Mr. WONG Sin Yung

Ms. GUO Jing
(Resigned on 28 May 2013)

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
Mr. LI Bida
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on pages
50 to 54 of the annual report.

In accordance with 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and
Dr. NGAI Wai Fung will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a director’s
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
from 4 July 2012.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three
years from 4 July 2012.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company
has entered into any service contract with the Company which
cannot be terminated by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board, in
consultation with the Remuneration Committee, with reference to
their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation

As of 31 December 2013, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they had taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into the
register that was required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”):
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Number of

shares/  Approximate

underlying percentage of

Long/Short position shares held issued share

Name of director in Ordinary Shares Nature of interest B 153 & AE B capital

EEEH ZEBERP 2 KB EaME RHEE BRADL

CHEN Qiyuan Long Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 65.30%
PR BRI e ANE(MEET)

WAN Yuhua Long Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 65.30%
B EE e ~ A (P FE2)

WONG Sin Yung Long Personal (Note 3) 2,100,000 0.07%
mER o 18 A (B 5E3)
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by CHEN Qiyuan and WAN
Yuhua.

2. WAN Yuhua is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station Ltd.
by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by WAN Yuhua and CHEN
Qiyuan.

3. Including 630,000 shares, which would be allotted and issued to WONG Sin Yung
upon the exercise in full of the share options granted to WONG Sin Yung under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company. For details, please refer to
section headed “Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”
below.

Long position in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the associated corporations

B &E -

1. /& #% Fortune Station Ltd. & FR BUR & & £ #
Fir #2 % + BR RUR # 4% /& % B Fortune Station
Ltd. Frss BRI BV fE =5 o

2. B #% Fortune Station Ltd. & & T % & & RUR
BT % i - B X 2 % 1% & ¥ B Fortune Station
Ltd. Fr i B 8RR 5 B R 5 o

3. BE630000BHEERETHESHR R
BARRERARBEENBRENE &
ERITEBRER ZSROBEEER
BIThEER -BHARE S2HTXE
BB ERAREEABARESE ] —

Approximate
percentage of

interest in

associated

Name of associated corporation

Name of director corporation Nature of interest Number of shares  RIHEEEH

EEE8 B EE R S BHEE ZEZESH

CHEN Qiyuan Fortune Station Ltd. Personal 5,100 51.00%
bR BROR Fortune Station Ltd. EPN

WAN Yuhua Fortune Station Ltd. Personal 4,900 49.00%
ELE Fortune Station Ltd. @A

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2013, so far BREMEEMNABZIN BE_ZT—=

as known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into in
the register that was required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2013, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register that was required to be kept pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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BAXREEEAEERESHTHA
§ BE-FT-=F+-A=t—8
BR(BARNEELRSTHAS
50) B B9 S A8 B AR 15 o M 1R I 5 5
R HR 5 G 0 336 (0 E BB RN B
BB RMA0MSSAR

o

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held capital
REREE EEME RH BB BRED
Fortune Station Ltd. Corporate 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.30%
Fortune Station Ltd. NE]
CHEN Qiyuan Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.30%
PR BRIR AR (fFEE)
WAN Yuhua Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.30%
B EE ~NaEl(ME2)

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position
Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital of
Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune
Station Ltd. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to be interested
in WAN Yuhua'’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of
Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune
Station Ltd. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to be interested
in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2013, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

1. % B2 JR /% Fortune Station Ltd. £ 2 7 % 7
B51.0%E 25 A A+ I 4% 18 & X Fortune
Station Lid. F B RO HEEREFZ - B
) e (8 IR BUR 4 R A 7 & £ £ 1 Fortune
Station Ltd. Ay 25 #E B A 25 ©

2. # X # )5 Fortune Station Ltd. & % 77 i &
H49.0%E = E B A - I # 15 A I Fortune
Station Ltd. 5 5 K AR 1 R #E B 1 %5 o FR AKX
TR B BC B B T 24 R A 1R BUR /£ Fortune
Station Ltd. Ay 25 #E B A 25 ©

BHE-_T—=F+=-A=+—8 "KEt
XHBEBEALZIN RRBIEGEMA
T(RARBEFTHHZERITHAEBI)
RIEODHAEBRD TP EEREEZES K
HIERDIFIBHEMERELRBRFE
B M AR ESSIRR -
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The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10
December 2008 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0%
(or such other percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of Shares issuable to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates)
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5.0 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon
payment of an option price to be determined by the Board from
time to time. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall be at least the highest of () the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average
of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (i) the nominal value of
a Share.

As of 31 December 2013, an aggregate of 2,880,000 shares
options were granted to three employees by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme, but all of them have been forfeited.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As of 31 December 2013, options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted,
representing approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the latest practicable date. No further options
will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42
participants by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each.
The subscription price of the pre-IPO share options would be at
par value or at HK$1.19.
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Report of the Directors

EFERT

A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to
subscribe for a total of 840,000 shares are forfeited in May 2013,
which was partially exercised up to 31 December 2013.
Movement of these share options during the year ended 31
December 2013 are as follows:

Number of share options

RZEFZAFXANB RAIET™W
ZEITEE A 4,200,0000% ) & XD
A % & B B8 AR 4 - H A - 48 2£840,000
[ EREER -2 —=—F A1 A ®I
B HE_E—=%+_A=+—8"
ZEREEDOWTFE - BLEHRAH
BENBEREBEE _Z2—=1+_A8
=+ HIEFERMBALOT :

ROBEHE
Outstanding [o]i ding as Approxi
as at at percentage of
1 January 31 December issued share
2013 Granted Exercise 2013 capital of the
BE during during Forfeited K Company (%)
Exercise price =~ —Z—=% the year the year during —E-=F EERAT
Name of director  Date of grant (HKD) —-A—H RER RER theyear +=—A=+—H0 BRTRANE Exercised Period
EEE8 BB THREE(ER) R AT BTHE THHEE REREXX 1 RATRE HEAL(%) TEHE
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 315,000 — - — 630,000 0.02 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
BER —TTNFRANR EE —T-=F+AMEE
ZE-AFRANA
Par Value 315,000 — — — 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
[EED —T-NFE+HANER
ZE-AFRANA
Total 630,000 - - — 630,000 0.02

ast

Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of
10,332,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were granted to 40 employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of
which, options to subscribe for totalling 3,728,120 Shares granted
to twenty-one employees had been forfeited.

As of 31 December 2013, there was a balance of unexpired and
unexercised options to subscribe for 3,825,040 Shares. Except
for the options which had been granted as disclosed above, no
further options were granted as at 31 December 2013. Details of
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 28 under the
section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements”
to this annual report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions and had complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1.

Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”)
renewed a production and office premises lease agreement
with Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Bawang”) on 21 January 2011, pursuant to which Bawang
Guangzhou agreed to lease from Guangzhou Bawang a
production premises and an office premises, both of which
were located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC (the
“Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement’).
The term of the Production and Office Premises Lease
Agreement is three years commenced from 4 December
2010. The monthly rent is RMB184,083 and is fixed
throughout the term of the lease. Bawang Guangzhou has
also been granted a right of first refusal to purchase the
production premises and office premises under the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement. The
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement was
terminated on 9 August 2013. Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the
“Production Plant Lease Agreement”) on 9 August 2013
for the lease of production plant at Bawang Industrial
Complex which was located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou,
the PRC. The lease term of the Production Plant Lease
Agreement is three years commenced from 9 August 2013.
The monthly rent and property management fee in
aggregate is RMB1,120,000. The other terms are the same
as the previous Production and Office Premises Lease
Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant to the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement and the
Production Plant Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately
RMB5.9 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua are Directors.
Guangzhou Bawang is company beneficially owned by Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua. The Production and
Office Premises Lease Agreement and the Production Plant
Lease Agreement therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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Office Premises Lease Agreement

Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a
tenancy agreement on 28 December 2011, pursuant to
which Bawang Guangzhou agreed to lease from Guangzhou
Bawang office premises located at Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC (the “Office Premises Lease
Agreement’). The term of the Office Premises Lease
Agreement is three years commenced from 1 January 2012
and the monthly rental payable is RMB182,000. The monthly
rental is fixed throughout the term of the tenancy. Bawang
Guangzhou has a right to terminate the Office Premises
Lease Agreement by giving a three months’ prior notice to
Guangzhou Bawang. Accordingly, Bawang Guangzhou
enjoys the flexibility to relocate to another site or premises at
any time should we consider the office premises no longer
suitable for our use or no longer cost competitive. The Office
Premises Lease Agreement is renewable at the option of
Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice prior to
the expiry of the lease. Bawang Guangzhou has also been
granted a first right of refusal to purchase the Office
Premises. Should Bawang Guangzhou decide to exercise
the first right of refusal in the future, it shall comply with all
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Office Premises Lease Agreement was terminated on 9
August 2013. Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a lease agreement (the “New Office Lease
Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for the lease of office,
which located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. The
lease term of the New Office Lease Agreement is three years
commenced from 9 August 2013. The monthly rent and
property management fee in aggregate is RMB92,800. The
other terms are the same as the previous Office Premises
Lease Agreement.

For the year end 31 December 2013, pursuant to the Office
Premises lLease Agreement and New Office Lease
Agreement, the annual rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to
Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMB1.7 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua are Directors.
Guangzhou Bawang is company beneficially owned by Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua. The Production and
Office Premises Lease Agreement and the New Office Lease
Agreement therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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Packaging Material Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
packaging material supply agreement with Guangzhou
Chenming Paper Products Company Limited (“Chenming
Paper”), pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed to
supply packaging material to Bawang Guangzhou from time
to time at fixed unit prices for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009 (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou and
Chenming Paper will review the prices offered by Chenming
Paper at least once annually to ensure that they are at
market prices or at prices no less favourable than those
offered to Bawang Guangzhou by independent third-parties.
The supply agreement was renewed on 28 December 2011
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2012
and on the same terms as the original Packaging Material
Supply Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement and its renewal
agreement, the annual transaction amount for the supply of
packaging material by Chenming Paper to Bawang
Guangzhou was approximately RMB9.2 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly-
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions under the Packaging Material
Supply Agreement and its renewal agreement therefore
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
toothpaste container supply agreement with Guangzhou
Qiancai Packaging Material Co., Ltd. (“Qiancai
Packaging”), pursuant to which Qiancai Packaging agreed
to supply toothpaste containers to Bawang Guangzhou from
time to time at fixed unit prices for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009 (the “Toothpaste
Container Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou and
Qiancai Packaging will review the prices offered by Qiancai
Packaging at least once annually to ensure that they are at
market prices or at prices no less favourable than those
offered to Bawang Guangzhou by independent third-parties.
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The Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement was renewed
on 28 December 2011 for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2012 and on the same terms as the previous
Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement. As the Directors
expect that the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the
maximum transaction value on an annual basis relating to
the Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement (and its
renewal agreement) will be less than 5% and the total
consideration is less than HK$1.0 million, the transactions
contemplated under the Toothpaste Container Supply
Agreement constitute exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of toothpaste containers
by Qiancai Packaging to Bawang Guangzhou under the
Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement (and its renewal
agreement) was approximately RMBO.7 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. A majority equity interest in
Qiancai Packaging is owned by Ms. WU Xiaotao, who is Mr.
CHEN’s sister-in-law. The Toothpaste Container Supply
Agreement (and its renewal agreement) therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole, and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the financial year.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company had any interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2013, save as
disclosed in the corporate governance report on pages 26 to 33
of the annual report, all the code provisions set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by
the Company.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Company has also
complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and
appointed three independent non-executive Directors including
one with financial management expertise. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group. The Audit Committee also provides advice and
suggestions to the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited annual financial statements of the Group contained in this
annual report with the management of the Company and the
Company’s independent auditors and recommended its adoption
by the Board.

During the year, KPMG, who acted as auditor of the Company for
the past three years, resigned and SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
was appointed as auditor of the Company. SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Directors and Senior Management

s=hEEERAE

Directors

The Board consists of six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
following table sets forth certain information in respect of our
Directors:

===

EEEHAREFHK  BR-RNT
EFER=RBIUFATES - TRHS
AREFENETER:

Name Age Position/Title

HE Fir B RAE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 52 Chairman and Executive Director

PR RUR 52 4 ITRERATES

Ms. WAN Yuhua 48 Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Executive Director
BxExt BERRITERNMTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 59 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
BEREE EEMBEERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 52 Independent non-executive Director
REREL B IEITES

Mr. LI Bida 73 Independent non-executive Director
FRERSE BUIERITES

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi 73 Independent non-executive Director

PR A& BYIEITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (BRE{E), aged 52, is the co-founder of our
Group, our chairman and has been our executive Director since
12 November 2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has
extensive experience in the Chinese herbal HPC product industry,
having been engaged in the consumer chemical product business
for over 19 years. Mr. CHEN and Ms. WAN entered the HPC
product business by establishing Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics
Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of the Company) in 1994, to
enter the HPC product business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was
engaged in the trading of pesticides in the PRC before the
establishment of Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In
November of 2010, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan was recognised as the
“Representative Successor of Chinese Herbal Tea Culture” by the
Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture. In December 2013, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the “Distinguished People of
Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution to the development
of the city. Mr. CHEN is the spouse of Ms. WAN.
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Ms. WAN Yuhua (8 £%), aged 48, is the co-founder of our
Group, our CEO and has been our executive Director since 12
November 2007. Ms. WAN is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, marketing planning, sales and distribution and research
and development of our Group. Ms. WAN has extensive
experience in the Chinese herbal HPC product industry. She has
over 18 years experience in the consumer chemical product
industry in the PRC. She also has extensive experience in the
sales and corporate management. Prior to the establishment of
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity
of the company), Ms. WAN worked in South China Botanical
Garden, Chinese Academy of Sciences (71 B} 22 £ Fg fE ¥ 55
FT) as an engineer. Ms. WAN has been serving as the deputy
head of the Chamber of Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China
Federation of Industry & Commerce (T #E 2l TR EMASER
kAR EREE) since 2008. She was also elected Charismatic
Leader in Chinese Herbal Consumer Chemical Industry in China (F
B /b 2% H L 1T 2E %K 98 E A W)) by The Election Committee of the
National Industry Leading Brand (2 BT3B i HERE S
) in 2008. Ms. WAN obtained Guangzhou Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurship Award (E/)1#{E E BIAI 3£ & Bl #E) in 2008 from
Guangzhou Personnel Bureau (/M A %), a government body,
and Guangzhou Overseas Chinese Federation (J& M T £7 B4 2 & Bt
&) Ms. WAN was elected Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs for
Chinese Brand Building (/P B i 2 % + KEF B EXR) by China
Enterprise Culture Improvement Association in 2006. In 2013, Ms.
WAN was recognised as “The 4th Standing Committee Award” by
the Chinese National Joint Trade Association of Beauty-care &
Cosmetic Industry. She was recognised as “Honorable Civilian
Diplomat” of the Beijing Brithish Commonwealth Society. She was
recognised as the “People of the Economic Year 2013” in the
11th Chinese Economists Annual Competition of the China
Economic Summit 2013. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
plant genetics from South China Agricultural University (27 & 2
KE)in 1998. Ms. WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN.
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Mr. WONG Sin Yung (EZ#3), aged 59, is our Chief Financial
Officer and executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in
April 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director on 10
December 2008. He is responsible for the finance management
and control, accounting, auditing, company secretarial and
investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited (ZES £ B A R A 7)) (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates
(Industrial Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994
to 2003 respectively. He also worked for a certified public
accountant firm from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 28 years
experience in corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation
administration, and project consulting. He is an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG obtained a master’s degree in human resource
management from Macquarie University in 1996 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Hong
Kong in 1999.
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (Fi{21&), aged 52, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. He is
currently the Managing Director of MNCOR Consulting Limited, a
speciality corporate and compliance services provider to Companies
in pre-IPO and post-IPO. Dr. NGAl is also Chief Executive Officer of
SW Corporate Services Group Limited, of which MNCOR Consulting
Limited is a major shareholder. Dr. NGAI has since January 2013
been appointed by the Chief Executive of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region as a member of Work Group on Professional
Services under the Economic Development Commission. Prior to
that, he was the director and head of listing services of an
independent integrated corporate services provider. He is and has
been a vice president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries since 2002. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a felow of Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, a member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, the Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University and a member of Qualification and Examination
Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
obtained a doctor's degree in Finance from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in 2011, a master's degree in corporate
finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a
master’'s degree in business administration from Andrews University
of Michigan in 1992. Dr. NGAI has over 20 years of senior
management experience, most of which is in the areas of finance,
accounting, internal control and regulatory compliance for issuers
including major red chip companies. Dr. NGAI was an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of China
Life Insurance Company Limited (1 B8 A {2 I B R A 7)) (02628)
from 2006 to 2009 and Franshion Properties (China) Limited (J5 &t
EFRBE)VERAT (0817) from 2007 to 2011), and is currently an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (77 B4
72 P% 1D APRA 7)) (01186), China Coal Energy Company Limited (1
Bl B aeRIRID BPRAT]) (01898), SITC International Holdings
Company Limited (82 RERIEKABRAFT]) (01308) and an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Bosideng Intemational Holdings Limited (5 772 BB 52
A% B BR /A &]) (03998), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (25
HEZRARAT) (01238), Sany Heavy Equipment International
Holdings Limited (= —E#BEEERARAR]) (0631), Juda
Intemational Holdings Limited ($5 A BIFE 122 A BR /2 7)) (01329), (Biostime
International Holdings Limited (&4 TTEIBRIZAR AR AR]) (01112)
and LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDK), shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock Exchange and/or the New York
Stock Exchange.

REEEL 52K R-_TTNF+
ATHEZERRMOBILIFNTE
Z-RAC—RB/AALEMAI R L™
BRUBEXAABARBTOHRE — 8B
FREHARAAMNEZTAKLERE
KTECERBEEEBERAA(BES
BRERARASETIERR) MITHRAE
H-BRELN_T—=F—AREZFHE
FRTERETRREZERKRBER
ZESEXRBEIENAFEETK
St zpl  WEETBLEEKA
% Ei‘““?ﬁ’]%%%tmﬁﬁ%nﬂf
—FRBEEBTERITW
&E%l'ﬁﬁﬂaﬂgu
’JrEﬂﬁ

Pl
o -
o 4
i ar
o R
ma}?{*ﬂlﬂlﬂ

REAHER %f
®REANE
——FmE L iﬁﬁ I TS T%i
B R_TT_FHREABEIAES
CEEMBELIBEML R-—ANL_FE
GEXBETLUBRMNLZEBEARAETIHER
BB -RIELHEAEBBE0F SR
EEELR HPBAHBoKLRE
MRAB(BREAEAERF) DB
Gt NEEHEA R TEMERE - ]

\
L

H%%ﬁm@
oY W Fof 00 09 2

%M%M%W
9

IR ZEERNFE_ZETNLFLE
FHEASRERHD B R A F(02628)
WEBEVIIRNTEETREZZEGNE -

m:22t$i_;——iﬁﬁ
EH&i%WI)E@AMW)

ﬁﬁw%$lﬁk&f
(01186) * ¢l¢ﬁwmﬁhﬁﬁﬁ
01898) KR G B BB IR B R A A0 m&
mﬁiﬁﬂh%$&%V¥AE (B -
LA Ko 71 & BIBR 2 AR B IR A 71(03998) »
EREHMEERBERA ﬂmwwz
—ERBEEZERBR R FO631):
ﬁﬁl%&%ﬁﬁgmwm)é
A T BRI %ﬁ@A*@mz&E
#IDKK [5 88 & & & B R 2 7(LDK)
Mﬁ4#%ﬁ§$&%V§ggzﬁ
Falt A B B9 A% 19 1A B i%&/&iﬁﬁ
ARG R/ IR BER BT LT -

Annual Report 2013 =& — = £ F£ 2}



Mr. LI Bida (Z=443), aged 73, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. LI was the head of Department of
Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice of the PRC (7 B =)3% &322 60 =),
currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers and
Notarization, Ministry of Justice (FlEZMEAIAN TYEIEER),
from 1988 to 1992. He was also an arbitrator in China
International Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission (Ff
B &HEE SHEEZEE) from 1989 to 1990. From 1992 to
1995, he served as standing deputy head of State Trademark
Bureau (BIXREIZEE). From 1992 to 2001, he held various
positions in State Administration of Industry and Commerce (BZ
T 1T E IR 4 /D) including the head of the Fair Trading Bureau (22
x5 f5) and the head of Registration Bureau ((t%:T /). He
was a consultant with a number of companies, including Galanz
Group (F& B2 =) from 2001 to 2003, Perfect (China) Co., Ltd. (58
(B B B R AER A7) and Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. (&
J 2§82 AR A7) from 2001 to 2005, Ricoh China Co., Ltd. (32
Se(PERE AR AF]) from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China)
Co., Ltd. (&n#fr( ) B AR & AR 2 7l) from 2006 to 2007. He
is currently a member of the board of directors of Intellectual
Property Institute of Peking University (1t UK E AN EREE ),
professor of Renmin University of China Law School (fFE A R K
B35%/2 2307) and Capital University of Economics and Business (&
EB4ZHE 5K E2). Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from
Hubei University (75115 A< 22) in 1965.

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi (FRBE8%), aged 73, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 April 2009. Prior to
joining us, he held various governmental positions in Guangdong
province from 1964 to 1998. He was promoted to executive vice
mayor of Guangzhou in 1992 and deputy secretary of the Leading
Party Group of Guangzhou Municipal Government (B i B fT 2
#B2IZ350) in 1993. From 1998 to 2005, he was the chairman and
secretary of the Leading Party Group of Guangzhou Political
Consultative Conference (MM EF &k ELHEED). Since his
retirement from his governmental position in 2005, he held the
position of vice president of China Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (FF Bk B E 4 &), a charitable organization in the PRC.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in political education from South
China Normal College (ZmgEM&3E265), which is the predecessor
of South China Normal University (22 BT &5 A2, in 1964.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& N Az BUED ¥ &

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkPFa
Shi ne‘ZO[ng

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 57 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZWERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unqualified opinion on those statements on 19 March 2013.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chong Kwok Shing

Practising Certificate Number: P05139

Hong Kong
28 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= = N/
AR H 2~
1 A S R - NN B
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+-—HLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B E ARBTRT AR®BTT
(Restated)
(&)

Continuing operations BESEEK
Turnover EE 7 477,657 538,372
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (246,066) (312,609)
Gross profit £ 7 231,591 225,763
Other income H At e A 8 5,408 2,485
Changes in fair value less costs to EMBEERAABERM

sell of biological assets HENANEFBER (223) (665)
Selling and distribution costs #HE Mo iH R (295,024) (651,126)
Administrative expenses THEHR (58,583) (88,040)
Other expense HitEA (19,358) (24,956)
Finance costs Bl & A AR 9 (702) (731)
Loss before taxation TR E B (136,891) (437,270)
Taxation fRIa 10 — (82,605)
Loss for the year from continuing ZANYNEIE 7 F N F =]

operations attributable to FEICEEB 2

owners of the Company FAEE 11 (136,891) (619,875)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEET
Loss for the year from discontinued ~ ANA R B AE(EH

operation attributable to ERIEREEH 2

owners of the Company FANERE 13 (6,611) (97,694)
Loss for the year attributable to KARHEE AR

owners of the Company FREE (143,502) (617,569)
Loss per share BRER 15
From continuing and KEFFEEEREBTR

discontinued operations BRI AR & 2T

Basic and diluted (RMB) EXRR#ES(ARE) (0.049) 0.212)
From continuing operations KEIFEBEEER

Basic and diluted (RMB) ERRES(ARE) (0.047) 0.179)
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Consolioated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SeffnkEMLEE KGR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_ZT-=F+t-A=+—RALFE

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
(Restated)
(&)
Loss for the year FREE (143,502) (617,569)
Other comprehensive expense Hihz2mEXZH
Items that may be reclassified AIREGET D EEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: EHH :
Exchange differences arising on BINEBBREZELEZR
translation of foreign operations (6,910) (629)
Total comprehensive expenses for PiN/NESTE SN
the year attributable to owners of FRNEAEXZ T RE
the Company (150,412) (618,198)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e
%/\/\

B 75

As at 31 December 2013
RZTE—=%+=-RA=+—H

% 7R M 3R

2013 2012
—=E-—= —_EF—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
({Nf=a AR® Tt AR T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥7% ~ i E M & 18 294,256 321,619
Prepaid advertising fee BENESEER 123 1,454
Biological assets EYEE 19 170 142
294,549 323,215
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 55,341 64,801
Biological assets EYEE 19 1,886 1,836
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b B U FR 0B 21 94,922 138,161
Restricted bank balance X PR B RITIF 22 309 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERE 22 43,302 224,608
195,760 429,406
Current liabilities REBEaE
Trade and other payables 25 kEHM ﬁ’é e 23 212,121 247,785
Secured bank loans E HIFFITER 24 = 76,390
Amounts due to related parties  J& < 8 38 J5 7 18 33a 1,514 4,090
Income tax payables ERTFTB 9,645 9,656
Provisions SHIREAE 25 1,826 —
225,106 337,921
Net current (liabilities) assets #E (EB)EEFE (29,346) 91,485
Total assets less current EEHABERABERE
liabilities 265,203 414,700
Non-current liability FhRBEE
Deferred tax liability EIEFIEAG 26 2,031 2,031
Net assets EEFE 263,172 412,669
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RaEMBKRE

As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+-RA=+—H

2013 2012
—E-—= -z

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 ARMTRE ARBTT

Capital and reserves BEXREE
Share capital fi& 2 27 256,639 256,639
Reserves wE 6,533 156,030
Total equity A 263,172 412,669

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 159 ESTEFIOBE 2 FEMBBRREN T

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —HE=ZAZt+ N \BEESSHEREE
directors on 28 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: BT UWHTIINEERKREE:
Director Director
EFE EF
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
PR BUR Exg
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAMEBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_ZT-=F+t-_A=+—RALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERBEAELR
PRC
Share Share statutory Capital Merger Translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BA  BARE PEIERE EREE AHEE EXRE  RHER RRAR
RMB'OOO  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTL ARETRE ARBTL ARBTI ARBTR ARETRL ARBTI

At 1 January 2012 R-ZB——%F
—A—H 256,511 1,351,690 49,887 9,676 8,468 (18,829) (628,561) 1,028,842
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (617,569) (617,569
Other comprehensive expense  H 12 E & R
for the year
Exchange differences arisihgon /G40 £ #HE 7
translation of foreign operations  [E ¥, =& - - - - - (629) - (629)
Total comprehensive expenses  FR 2 E X HEE
for the year - — — - - (629) (617,569)  (618,198)
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR 4 B 3 LA
share based payments B AEBBMR - - - 1,897 - - - 1,897
Issue of shares under share option 18 1% B8 AR fE 5+ 2] 2 17
scheme (note 27a) R 1 (Fi 5k 27a) 128 3,052 - (3,052) - - - 128
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%
+-A=1t—H 256,639 1,354,742 49,887 8,521 8,468 (19,458) (1,246,130) 412,669
Loss for the year FRER - - - = = = (143,502)  (143,502)
Other comprehensive expense ~ E 2 E B A
for the year
Exchange differences arisingon (BN £ R E 2
translation of foreign operations ~ [E 3} = & - - - - - (6,910) - (6,910)
Total comprehensive expenses N2 448
for the year - - - - - (6,910) (143,502)  (150,412)
Recognition of equity-settled R ELEE T I
share based payments Ftn B ERE R % = - - 915 - - = 915
Forfeiture of vested equity-settled % I 57 & &) A A i
share-based payments EEL AR
REHNEH = = = (2,893) = = 2,893 =
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=+—H 256,639 1,354,742 49,887 6,543 8,468 (26,368) (1,386,739) 263,172
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=IAN PANEN =~ — 1
,Z‘\,\ = Eﬁi//lbi

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T—=F+-A=+—HLLFE

Zi

2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR
(Restated)
(&7
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Loss before taxation from BELEER 2HAER
continuing operations (136,891) (437,270)
Loss before taxation from BRI E X 2 A EE
discontinued operation (6,611) (97,694)
(143,502) (5634,964)
Adjustments for: BRTIIELFE
Bank interest income AT A B U A (836) (1,206)
Investment income B W= - (36)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEBKEEFERED (9,957) (54,710)
Finance costs =N 702 731
Depreciation of property, plant YE BERKEBITE
and equipment 27,653 22,094
Share option expenses EiREER 915 1,897
Changes in fair value less costs to EMBEEARBEMEE
sell of biological assets KA E BB 223 665
(Reversal of) impairment loss on trade B 5 rEWRIERE
receivables (B mE)B X (2,717) 3,840
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, BREWE BMENMKRE
plant and equipment (W) |k (267) 25,065
Impairment loss on property, plant W BEKZREREEX
and equipment 17,738 -
Write-off of inventories 78w 13,054 63,841
Write-off of other receivables HAth & Y SR IE 8 5H 589 —
Write-back of trade and other payables B 5 N H b A FRIE D (2,471) —
Allowance of inventories FTEKEEE 4,143 25,603
Provision for litigation FATIEEA 1,826 -
Operating cash flows before working CEESEEATZ
capital changes KEBEEmE (92,907) (447,180)
Decrease in inventories FERL 2,329 18,021
Decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 K& H b g U 5 18 57 2 36,873 90,553
Increase in restricted bank balances PR HI SR 17 17 28 0 (309) —
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 & E th FE 5B
other payables OB ) & (30,823) 34,172
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FE 1 RE 3 5 A CRi ) 18
related parties (2,576) 361
Decrease in prepaid advertising fee ENESERR D 1,331 2,421
Cash used in operations KETEESFAMNE S (86,082) (301,652)
Income taxes paid BEER - -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHMANRESFE
ACTIVITIES (86,082) (301,652)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+-—BLLEE

2013 2012
—F-= —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETx
(Restated)
(ZE5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEIEE
equipment (18,815) (153,847)
Plantation expenditure of biological EYMEEBBHEY N
assets — non-current portion —ERBBH (410) (443)
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEEWE - J“r?ﬁ B KA
plant and equipment Fr 15 53 1,021 110
Bank interest received 2R TT 7T 'J 836 1,206
Proceeds from sales of other investments Hj & H {th 1% é‘ B BT 15 3R = 62,036
Acquisition of other investments BEMKEE = (62,000)
NET CASH USED IN REZHFMARESFH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (17,368) (152,938)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEES
New bank loans raised FIIRITER - 76,390
Repayment of secured bank borrowings BRI IBHRITE X (76,390) —
Interest paid =ENElES (1,434) -
Proceeds from issue of shares FITIR Tﬁ P15 7008 - 128
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM METEH (TR ELERSTFH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (77,824) 76,518
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BERBASEEYRDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (181,274) (378,072)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT REVNZHERRLZEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 224,608 602,672
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXgFHTE
RATE CHANGES 32) 8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZBEERBEZEEY
END OF THE YEAR, representing B35 iR 1T & 84
bank balances and cash 43,302 224,608
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4r & B IS R 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_ZT-—Z=ZFt+t_A=1t—HLFE

o4

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company is
Fortune Station Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is beneficially owned by Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, the Chairman of the board of directors of the
Company, and Ms. WAN Yuhua, the director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (collectively referred to as
the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at 6th
Floor, 181 Tangle Road, Tangyong Village, Xinshi, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510410, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products. The Group was also engaged in the sales of
herbal tea products which was discontinued in current year
(see note 13).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB143,502,000 and reported a net cash outflow from
operating activities of approximately RMB86,082,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2013, and had cumulative losses
of approximately RMB1,386,739,000 and net current
liabilities of approximately RMB29,346,000 as at 31
December 2013. In view of such circumstance, the directors
of the Company have given consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Bz

—E-=F+-A=t-ALEE

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group is able to continue as a going
concern in the coming year taking into consideration of the
following:

(i)

The Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB43,302,000 as at 31 December
2013.

In March 2013, the Controlling Shareholders and
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Bawang”), an entity wholly-owned by the Controlling
Shareholders, have undertaken to provide a long-term
loan facility to the Group in an amount up to
RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15 March 2013 to
31 December 2015. Subsequent on 23 January 2014
and 26 February 2014, respective amount of
HK$9,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB7,515,000) and US$6,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB41,088,000) have been drawn
down by the Group. The long-term loans are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 29
November 2016 or earlier as determined by the Group.

The directors of the Company have been taking
measures to optimise the Group’s operations and
improve the cost structure, which include the following:

— adopting measures to expand the revenue
stream through the launch of enhanced or new
products series and promotion of certain existing
product lines of higher margin; and

— adopting various cost control measures to tighten
the costs of operations and various general and
administrative expenses, including but not limited
to adopting more cost-effective advertising and
promotion channels and reducing the staff
headcounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+_-A=+-—BLLEE

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”) for the first time.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
IFRSs — Government Loans
Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to I1AS 1 Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures
IFRIC*—Interpretation Stripping Costs in the Production
(“Int”) 20 Phase of a Surface Mine

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Standards
Interpretation Committee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+-—BLLEE

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to IAS 1, the Group’s
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” and the “income statement” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss”. The amendments to IAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is
required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.
The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in
any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and total comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_TZ—=F+-"A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised P& A ERE] I R AE 5T Bl PR
International Financial Reporting B RE 2R ([EERE
Standards (“IFRSS”) (continued) BIEZED ] @

IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement BEMEREEANFEI1SHELAR
Esft &
The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the KREBNAKFEE T X FER KRBT
current year. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of F& a5 A B £ 1358 o B BR Bt & 3]
guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value TR FEBRBLABLAAE
measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; the fair value FENMAREGFERENE —I5
measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both 3| o B ERETFE IR & £ A F 1358 1
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items g EE T BB ERS %L
for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value F2HRUBRD AER 2 NZREHEEA
measurements and disclosures about fair value LMD AERZARR S - BER
measurements, except for share-based payment e ERFI7HHESENHEE
transactions within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based R UKEAARBEEAEZETIH
Payment, leasing transaction within the scope of IAS 17 PIEBIWIERA R BEZ = (WG ET
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to ERFEE W 2 A 38 FE KR
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for BNfEENZERERE) N BEE
the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for B f& 3y & XE B 551358 2 A 2 B &t
impairment assessment purposes). = A R H b B BR B 75 1R & 2 B
MENEFAABFAEREER
REFEZHMBIAER R
HILAER -
IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that BREf &R &S E R FA3R G B E
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a WAL EBERTATEREMMRRILT
liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a liability) NeA=EE —RBAETE (K& EF
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most M) MEBEERFXSHE—BE
advantageous) market at the measurement date under EHWEBNER(SHMAEES
current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an ENAL BEHEZEEBSIMNY
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly B RBIEHRMIEHRSE ERFE
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 13%  THZEEREEEE TR
Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements. ReyFHS —BHEFEELGE
P AARBERFEEBR N
BRI BmEEREIBRABE
Bz R TEHE
IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance PR B 7% i 45 25 BI| 513 5% 78 A IE
with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has FER - IR AR EERE
not made any new disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the 138 B E g AREEY &
2012 comparative period (please see note 19 for the 2013 T — —F R B E L R
disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the HE E B B3R R E 2 E [
application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact on FR(ZCE—=FFKEFLMFE
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial 19) - BREASNBY B BB 5 - JE A B IR
statements. B REERFISRLELHLEA
M BmRAERE R EXEM
EATE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 27

IFRS 14

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC-Int 21

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments*

Mandatory Effective Date of
IFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures”

Investment Entities’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Define Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

Levies'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=—F+_A=+—HILEE

2. Application of New and Revised V& F 3 5] I A< A2 ] B P
International Financial Reporting B i% 2= (TRPRE
Standards (“IFRSS”) (continued) BIREELD ] )

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet ERAERRERZHITRE
effective (continued) ETERMBHREEN (B
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with ! RZZTE—MF—F—B=AE&HRR
earlier application permitted. ZFEHMAER WA RATER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, except as 2 R-ZE—NFEL A —HsAEHLB
disclosed below. Early application is permitted. ZEEHMAES BT XEEIN 7]
$R AT A -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with ® R-IZE—RF—HA—HxXABHLH
earlier application permitted. ZEEHMER  WAIRAIER -
4 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined & A ER R AN HEEEERS
when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised. AEBFENFERLNEETRET -
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 FRHEESTENZEFENE
Cycle —E—-EEF_E—_F8
’)
The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle REt R v EE R E (=
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which E—FFE_FT-_FHEE)BE
are summarised below. % I8 ¥ 1 [A) B PR B 75 & 2E B E
B2 EE] - BB T -
The amendments to IFRS 2 () change the definitions of BB R EEAF2RZIETA
“vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (i) add ()E 2k 7[5 B 4] A0 [ T 35 16 4 |
definitions for “performance condition” and “service BT & KBTI 4% &
condition” which were previously included within the ERIRBEGHINERE (EIEHAA
definition of “vesting condition”. The amendments to IFRS 2 [BEBIREINESR) - B % R
are effective for share-based payment transactions for which SR FEoOR B ANIE TR A
the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014. ZE—NHELtH—H=HZ2ENK
NITRRZH M -
The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that contingent MR B 7 3 45 2 Bl 55 358 (& =T 2N
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability B REREBHE T BAEEE
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date, HKBENIARBREIRA 2 E
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a S THZIXARERTER
financial instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39 or PR A RS HE B FFOsR sk B PR & 51
a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other AR SE 395 & B A/ B 75 T B 5L
than measurement period adjustments) should be K EESNBEE A X BEEH
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to IFRS 3 (GTEBFAERIN BRIEZ KR
are effective for business combinations for which the oo BB SRS ER|E 3B E]
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014. AHEWERAHA-_ZET—NELA
—HBECENEBEHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+-—BLLEE

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to IFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have “similar economic characteristics”;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13
clarify that the issue of IFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9 did not remove the ability
to measure short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=—F+_A=+—HILEE

2. Application of New and Revised FE F 3 e] & & 1Z 5] BB
International Financial Reporting B RE 2R ([EERE
Standards (“IFRSS”) (continued) BIEZED ] @

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 BRMEREERNZEENE
Cycle (continued) —E-EFXEFE_T—-_8
’) (&)
The amendments to IAS 24 clarify that a management entity BR & =t % Bl 2455 8 5] A
providing key management personnel services to a reporting B AREEERETEEE A
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, EREHNEEEREARSTERERN
the reporting entity should disclose as related party 3T - At IS BREILEE
transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or FREBEMEXEIEET BIZM
payable to the management entity for the provision of key MEEEEASREME Mk E
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the HFRIE - Rifn - BAKEE B R
components of such compensation is not required. B &9 48 Bk 2619 ©
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the NN A E E T8 H B A0 B BR B RS 3R
application of the amendments included in the Annual EHRANZFERNE(ZZTE—TFE
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a —E-_FREH)RE BT
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial TeHWARERNGEAMBHEEXRE
statements. RERNFTE -
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 BRMEREENZEENE
Cycle (ZESE——FF_E—Z=%F38
8)
The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle BB SRS 2R 2 FEWE (=
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which TE——F T —=—FRH)BHE
are summarised below. HETHEEREMGHREENZ 218
Bl BEEamT e
The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does [ B 78w &5 #E BI| £ 358 2 & 5] 2N
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of HE ZEANTTERAREER
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint b2 == O e B el i = R i
arrangement itself. EERHNERTETZ @K
I
The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the B TS R 5 2 B F135E 2 B 5T
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of ANEHAE OFRBEERGT=E —HY
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes BEENMBEEAABENRK
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for ZBHEABINERGESEBR
in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9, even if those B = 51 25 Bl 55 39 5% 2k BY R B 7§
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or TR & 2 Bl 25 95k &) [F 2k 1% IR xR 1E
financial liabilities within IAS 32. FAZENFRESR  BIEZE
EREIFEEBE AR E3I2
FHRUKEESIVMBEEZEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@ the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of IAS 40; and

(o) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under IFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to the new requirements for hedge
accounting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+_-A=+-—BLLEE

2. Application of New and Revised

International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 9 —Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

BB AR B
EHBmMT :

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition under IFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
IFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to IFRS 10 define an investment entity and
require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an
investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss in its financial statements.
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76

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Investment Entities (continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional investment
management services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

. measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS 12
and IAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
investment entities amendments will have any effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Company
is not an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans—Employee Contributions

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans—Employee Contributions (continued)

For contributions that are independent of the number of
years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered, or to attribute them
to the employees’ periods of service using the projected unit
credit method; whereas for contributions that are dependent
on the number of years of service, the entity is required to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to IAS 19 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any defined benefit
plans.

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to IAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.
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2. Application of New and Revised FE F 3 e] & & 1Z 5] BB
International Financial Reporting B RE 2R ([EERE
Standards (“IFRSS”) (continued) BIEZED ] @
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount e EREI6EIERT &
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets [GEMBEETIO & T ¥

= |
The amendments to IAS 36 remove the requirement to o g =+ ME B F 3658 2 & 5] AN 5
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit B 5 & 2 BD i 2 sk E R (F A & Hf
(“CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with ZEMEFEENRESELEEN
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has ([REELEN]) T EREDR
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related B % [ B 7] B Uy € 58 /9 3% 55 i
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional Bil - EEEXKBESELEMNRN
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy, AWREcBEEEALREBERES
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the BN GERBOR E R (BRI AN E K
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined ERARBEESL FHANETER
based on its fair value less costs of disposal. HREBE R EHE —FHHE -
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the ARRESEEE ERARER
application of these amendments to IAS 36 wil have a Bl 536 5% (& 5] 78 A B & B K 5K
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial B B % B 8 B 75 & B A B
statements. BEEBBREE-
Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company B EXFTIRBEEI RAAES
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised TEHAE B E b 3 aT R R (& 5] E
standards, amendments and interpretations will have no Al - gzl EBT2HANER 2
material impact on the results and the financial position of EBENTBERAEKRERNTE -
the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies FESTHE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared GEMEHRRTIIRE KR S TAD
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, NS NEM 7 BB SRS A R
the consolidated financial statements include applicable oo AN ERE SRR E AR
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Frsgs EmARA(TERmBRA]) X
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and EENBIEMREZ ERAHE -
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared A TN XA RERTE M BT
on the historical cost basis, except for biological assets that YHEEAKREPIHEENUAALE
are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting HEVEYMEBEN S£85 KR
policies set out below. RIBFE LR ARE RS -
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

. has the power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

0 has the ability to use it power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of these elements of control stated
above.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries begins when the Company
obtains control of over the subsidiaries and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiaries. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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FeREZEE(E)

SERMBAEKRERRIZEZEEN
BE #EmE WA FAXERER
B BRGERERTEYE-

Wr A 52

LI&Z)\TEEH&Z%JEHMJQFE’U“/ TE
AEIEMBEESERER
A R E AR LB

HEBEMmIWARE MM E R
E*&iﬁ%’vﬁﬁ : jﬂ”/\—l—ﬁlJFﬁﬁM
R RERA

s AKEEHKEVHWEKRER
LEBRBEERT

s AEEIERBE-—REHFA
BERZELEERFEE
IR S BRI

o WALEEERIEFE

s XRZWREBENERAGE
MAAEHE : &

. HXBAEMKBIIHTK
RELT A E -

MBEEZHBWAREER =
BRAERARNESEAWASEHEE
AEAERER  MBRATR
BFREE 2FZREEXAE LE
BRI = - BD )RR R %
MBEEEMRMFTRRRSERA
ERAMABNHMTREEERE
FEZMERRE -

Annual Report 2013 —ZE— =% F# 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+_A=+—-HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates on the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

] exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

TESTBER®

I (1

e HH—FIERRIRZM
ELXRNELZR UK

,ﬂl\

e EITETAIREEEZHE
INERH K ERN BB IR
B(2@HAHBINEBIKEEF
BN —BO)MEENER =
E - HEBReghirHEma
MW AR TREZBILSE
B IEH Hjﬁé%ﬁ“*ﬁﬁﬁ
e sl

REINGEEMBHREAME A%
BMzBIEBEERBBRAZ
BRMRcBTEXBRESAR
B2 E8BAIARE) - WA
ERAXEBRFAZFHEXR
EAZERZBR(WE)R
Hih2HKEAERIL Rt A%
mEBETNZELFEED

BREE

HEE REREEABKAE
(BRAABHEINEE AT
o 2 A ) B 2 B
RA TRARSEEZNA B
ERSAEE AR L ARERE
RS AL -

FIBEEMERKNARELEHBEE
JJ_/\\TE\MEF'EE%\

Annual Report 2013 —ZE— =% F% 33



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+_A=+—-HILFE

84

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff welfare are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.

Defined contribution retirement plans

Obligations for contributions to local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss when they are due, except to
the extent that they are included in the cost of inventories
not yet recognised as an expense.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefits is recognised at the
earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to capital reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments is only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilites and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

FTESHHE @

MR (&)

REEFEAGBNRMBARKRE
BRAZERN B ZHER - K
N 5 A AR ) B B = R 2 [ B
AR EZBRARAETENAR
BREBEZBERGIN - BEEZE
RENESD 2 AINKREREEMN
EEZEERBEEENATES
B 50 e RR B a A ] B) A RS = AR
AENER R NUI N S S e e R

27
E

it

EEBAEECFREERE —2
HBERETRE > LR A A EE

B 5 R B A AT A A W P
BB BT B IR & E B 1 AE
JE &Y Fi T 1B H0ORY

EEFMAEERABDLRERZ
BPRBSCROAERERMZ
ME(RBZE) REARBESR
BXRBREERNEER ZH KRG

sy
B o
e

EXHRBREREEZAHERR
AREE AN 2R REWE K
EREREENRAGBZEEEME
EZMBER -

BIH MR SE R AN 18 o P FE AR
HHEREEMEm MmN E
BEEEaTHIAZEBAER &
e T - B ER Ko FE A I8 IR D
MR EtmEERE AR E K TR
R o

86  BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited % F B B2 (& B) & IR A R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Bz

—E-=F+-A=t-ALEE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment losses. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to
sell, with any change therein recognised in profit or loss.
Costs to sell include all incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale of the biological assets, excluding finance costs
and income taxes.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Research and
development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.
Because of the nature of the Group’s research and
development activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late in the
development stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both research
costs and development costs are generally recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them
to their existing location and condition. In case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCUrS.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
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exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance amount
are recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
secured bank loans and amounts due to related parties are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

EER = u-I_EZEE Zi

¥ mR

ENRMBEERBRRESRZE L
BAMEER AEAKER S —
ERERBVBEEREGARL
BRER D R B R | W N & E
@%tﬁ%%%ﬁ§°

REERIBRAMBEER &
?%ﬁA%ﬁEW&EWRF&
PE At 2 WS TR R S
Aﬁ22ﬁ§%2wﬂ2%§
ENBEPHER -

R P22 T4 T E
EEERETY PR PR
BaE-KILRAZMGAEEE
EeBREARAEMKELES
&R IB R -

ERITHAERMGETT
BMERZZ2ETERE

AEBE N EAKEIME Z &5 K
BE ARREFARZFTEE
PAREEORRSEEZEEREA
82 AR E B 1F b 8 fE kR
HeZzEMARBEARRKRIIRIE
EFEAEERMERSHERCH
A EMmEL  BERAREG[E
AIREH R ZE o

ZEHARBERREGEEE
ETEM - GatAF 2B IR
1E & 7T b &1 2 B A e 58 (fini 18
RIERFEZHME) jZJW HE D
Ko R R ER TR W o8 (i {8 7] %2 & AN 1
K RREIFE) »

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=FF3 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-_Z—=Fft+-A=+—HLEEE

96

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements
policies

in applying accounting

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumptions involves
making judgements by the management, at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The management
considers that the Group has ability to continue as a going
concern and the major events or conditions, which may give
rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in note 1.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

4.

B Y R A T
BEEE >+ B RO )

BB R Z R P R

i)

g REEENRTX) - AT
ARABSARAEENEAN
SEEFHRRZBRETMAIEL -
THEEYBRENER SR
BRREAZEE -

BREEEZR
FEFELEBRRF I RAERE
BERE—FERBEHAS T HEE
ZEHIMRRNZ RARERELH
- EEERR AEEBRENE
BRZE MAREBRERSH
XBRRBRO ETEFHIMRAH
B/\\Bﬁuf1 °©

FHAFREERZEEZRE

B 2 95 50 5K 3k oK 2 0 £ o £ 3 8
R 2 - A A
TERR HEBREARET

— B REENEER A ERE
ERAEBABREHAR  FIH 0
™o

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited ¥ F B B (= @) % 5 R A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Bz

—E-=F+-A=t-ALEE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
on a straight-line basis between the rates of 5% to 50% per
annum, commencing from the date the property, plant and
equipment are available for use. The estimated useful lives
that the Group places the property, plant and equipment
into productive use reflects the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. Depreciation of approximately RMB27,653,000
(2012: RMB22,094,000) has been recognised for the year.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment on trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the trade and other receivables and on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately RMB94,922,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately RMB4,640,000 (2012:
carrying amount of approximately RMB138,161,000, net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
RMB7,357,000).

Allowance of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each class of inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Allowance of inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and related taxes
necessary to make the sale. For inventories with committed
sales orders or active market, the Group estimates the net
realisable value with reference to the selling prices set out in
the committed sales orders or in the active market. For
inventories without committed sales orders or active market,
the Group carefully estimates the net realisable value based
on available information and reasonable and supportive
assumptions on expected selling prices, manufacturing
costs, selling expenses, sales tax and etc. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB55,341,000 (2012: RMB64,801,000).

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, recoverable
amount of these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets may
not be readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and operating costs.
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is approximately RMB294,256,000, net
of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
RMB17,738,000. (2012: carrying amount of approximately
RMB321,619,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
nil).
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can
only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised, management judgement
is required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
The Group’s biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell for financial reporting purposes. The
management determines the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The financial controller reports the
valuers’ findings to the directors of the Company to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of the assets. Note 19 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of biological
assets.

Provision in respect of litigation

Provision for the expected cost of legal obligations are
recognised at the directors’ best estimate and with reference
to legal advice of the expenditure required to settle the
Group’s obligation. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of provision is approximately RMB1,826,000 (2012:
nil). Details are set out in note 35.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year. The Group
defines the capital of the Group as the total shareholders’
equity.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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6. Financial Instruments 6.

(@) Categories of financial instruments

B TE
() MBI AMEA
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Financial assets HMHREE
Loans and receivables B & E W R IE
(including cash and (BiERe kRS
cash equivalents) ZEW) 129,595 320,807
Financial liabilities MEaE
Other financial liabilities at LARE SH PR AN B BR 2
amortised cost HEm%aE (190,255) (309,474)
(60,660) 11,333
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) BERKEEBREERER

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to related parties
and secured bank loans. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

AEBZTEMBITAER
RESKEMEERKE R
TEeEMAS B NMEAM
FE T 5ROR - FE A BRIE )5 RIA
MEEMRRITER - ZEH
BIAZHABREMER
BRE - BEZSUHKTEEH
ZERBREEERR &%
R B~ A R R B KO E) MR
B o N 3CEFI a0 fa] R % F
REzBR EEEEEN
ERZERB  AHERER
RBBERIABEEE

EE RS
RZE—=F+=_RA=+—
A AEEZ&sEERR
(ARG HARERBTEERRN
EEREZMBEERMS A
SEXXUKER)RESE
MBEERNBZRAMBRAEK
Frolz BRMEfE -

Annual Report 20183 =2 —=44% % 101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E-T-=Ft+-A=t-BLFE

B
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

102 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 F B[ (£ E)1E R B R 2

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
of credit risk of 9% (2012: 16%) and 35% (2012: 37%)
of the total trade receivables, which was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 4% (2012: 4%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entity making
the sale. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. The Group will monitor
foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

6.
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BT T B ()
b) HERBEEEERBE

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued) (&)

KRB (&)
REBUINEFBEZEEE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6.

Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities EREYAERERERZ
at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FREEMT
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F —_Eg—= —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR® T T ARET T ARET T
HK$ B IT 4,507 19,344 - (5,853)
US$ e 18 13,407 — ®)
Sensitivity analysis SRR JE 72T

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB,
HK$ and US$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%

AEBETZEHARE B
TRETEERR

TRHANATRERBBINE

(2012: 5%) increase and decrease in exchange rates HEERERIEEE 2
of the relevant foreign currencies against the respective EEXEFARTHSR(ZF —
entity’s functional currency. 5% (2012: 5%) is the ZFEE5%) ZHRERE 5%
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency (ZE—ZFF : 5%) 2 B

risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax loss where the respective functional
currencies of the reporting entity weaken 5% (2012: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% (2012:
5%) strengthening of the respective functional
currencies against the relevant foreign currencies,

B DTRAZMEZEE A
BEFRIMNERBEHER I
REEEHINEE X B

M2EBEE 27T H o SR
EATEBRREREBLUAININE
FFTECEKIER WK 2R
RSN (ZE——FF:
5%) 2 & = & 8) 75 B H #
o TR R ZIESFERM
ZERERIEER L IEE
INEEBT BHE% (& — — F ¢

5%) B HEBBR D ZH
R o W AH B 1) A B K AR

there would be an equal and opposite impact on the INEAHESR(ZF—= ¢
loss, and the balances below would be negative. 5%) * &% )E‘J‘ BEKSE
(=] $HJ§Z?V = ﬁﬁ—l—%zzz
MG RAE -
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

6. &R

(b)

HK$

BT
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

MERBREEZARRBER

(43
\Ag)

BERRRE(E)
HBE S (B)
Us$
ESpH
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®ETTT

Profit or loss % Fl| =k /& 18 184 571 1 559
Interest rate risk F) =% R B
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group is RZE—=FN_FT——_F

exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
bank balances (note 22). No sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
bank loans (note 24). As at 31 December 2013, the
Group is not subject to fair value interest rate risk as
the Group has repaid the fixed-rate bank loans.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in
the short and longer term; this excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB29,346,000. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the details of which are set out in note 2.

The following table details the undiscounted cash flows
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are all

6. BB ITRw

(b)

MERBEZARRBE

(42
(#8)

R E R (S

AEEHEREFERRER
WM FEE - Nim e LGB
BREEBEAEREMANERE
noMBRKE NEBEER

2,
=

AAREBRN _ET—=F+
— A=+ BGFEERDAEE
4 A R #29,346,000 » AN B
B ifmmEsREERR - AR
REERALAEEERNE
BEAKENZAGB #8R
BfsE2 o

IATEREINRAKE —FR
I B AE I RTRA

A=

repayable on demand or within 1 year. T
Repayable Total
on demand or undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year cash flows amount
REREE KRBERERD
R—FR mELAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AR®TRT ARBTT
At 31 December 2013 R=-B—=F
+=A=+-8

Non-derivative financial liabilities JE£74 B K & 1&
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH AR RIE (188,741) (188,741) (188,741)
Amounts due to related parties JiE < B 2 5 FRIE (1,514) (1,514) (1,514)
(190,255) (190,255) (190,255)

At 31 December 2012 RNR-ZE——F
+=ZHA=+-—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities EfTE£ B EE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H ith FE < A (228,994) (228,994) (228,994)
Amounts due to related parties FESH R E A 3k0E (4,090) (4,090) (4,090)
Secured bank loans EEFIRITER (77,824) (77,824) (76,390)
(310,908) (310,908) (309,474)
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6.

Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
approximate their fair values due to short maturities.

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable of the goods sold to customers, net of discounts
allowed, volume rebates and sales related taxes where
applicable.

Information reported to the most senior executive
management of the Group, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on a mixture
of product lines and geography. The segments are managed
separately as each operating segment offers different
products which require different production information to
formulate different strategies. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under IFRS 8 are as follows:

o Hair-care products
o Skin-care products
] Other household and personal care products

An operating segment regarding herbal tea products was
discontinued in the current year. The segment information
reported below does not include any amounts for this
discontinued operation, which is described in more detail in
note 13.

Also, the Group’s senior executive management is provided
with segment information concerning segment revenue and
result. Segment assets and liabilities are not reported to the
Group’s senior executive management regularly.
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7. Turnover and Segment Information (continued) 7.

EEERDIHER @)

Segment revenue and results ST ARER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTRAEEREITRENZEEL
results from continuing operations by reportable and B ERIR AR SEE DT
operating segment:
Continuing operations
BREEEE
Other household
and personal
Hair-care products Skin-care products care products Total
HttRAR
EBER EEED BAEEER it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f —-—ET-—-F ZEB-= —E--& ZB-=Z§ -—T--§ Z8-Z= &

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR AREBTRL

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR AREBTRL

(Restated)
(E=50)
Sales to external HETFHNBER
customers 400,447 446,666 34,427 67,308 42,783 24,398 477,657 538,372
Segment loss SHER (107,053)  (336,681) (9,972) (68,752) (6,445) ©0380) (1234700  (414,813)
Changes infairvalue £ ¥ EE R A
less coststosell of  (EERIEE
biological assets R B
B (223) (665)
Bank interestincome 3R 17 % £ M A 834 1,124
Other revenue Hipg A 1,577 674
Corporate and other & 9 Bt 2 4 #F &2
unallocated Hiphx
expenses (14,907) (22,859)
Finance costs HEER (702) (731)
Loss before tax Y VS i
(continuing fyﬂ HIEE
operations) (136,891)  (437,270)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the loss made by each segment
without allocation of changes in fair value less costs to sell of
biological assets, bank interest income, net exchange gains/
losses, provision for litigation, write-off of other receivables,
central administration cost, directors’ emoluments and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the senior
executive management of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

DHEEEZTIBAEEZE
B ERYESEKELEMEENR
REBEERBEERANEBELE
RITFMBBA - EXEEFER  F
AFHIRE M - H M E W RIARE
BR -FRE EEEJZ$ EEH A
RBERK - W RERDE R
RARFEMAANEEZ®RIT K
EEAEBREZGHELA -
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7. Turnover and Segment Information (continued) 7. EEZE R 7 2B E R (@)

Other segment information HESHBEH
Continuing operations
Other household
and personal
Hair-care products Skin-care products care products Total
HtRAR
BERER EEEM BAREER Ch
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f -—ET-——-F ZEB-= —E--& ZB-=§F -—T--% ZB-Z= —T-CF

RMB’000 RVB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RVMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR ARERTL ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTE

Amounts included in 5 & 5 2 & R B
the measure of BEARE

segment results
Depreciation of mE -BEK
property, plant RENE
and equipment 22,324 16,837 1,849 2,538 2,532 1,208 26,705 20,583

Impairment losson ~ #1% - BE Rk
property, plantand R EERX

equipment 14,330 - 1,232 - 1,531 - 17,093 -
(Gain) loss on disposal REWE  HRE

of property, plant R z)

and equipment Bk (235) 9,564 (20) 13,860 (25) 522 (280) 23,946
(Reversal of) E 5 W8

impairmentlosson (&)@

trade receivables B (2,278) 3,186 (196) 480 (243) 174 @717 3,840
Reversal of write-down 77 & % (B £ 145

of inventories & (8278) (39,148) (701) (6,192 (978) 4,336) (9,957) (49,676)
Write-down of FEUEEE

inventories 2,734 13,283 232 2,101 323 1,471 3,289 16,855
Write-off of inventories 17 & R ¥ 10,930 42,444 661 8,385 1,001 9,159 12,592 59,988
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7. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are mainly located in the
PRC (country of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the
case of property, plant and equipment and biological assets,
and the location of the operation to which they are allocated,
in the case of the non-current portion of prepaid advertising
fee.

wESH

AEEREREEBIEREDPE
REIREE (FRERBIZ) MEE ©

BEPH AR T RIER ‘RS
IRNERWUEEE - JER B
BEMNWEBELUEDNREBEEEER
FFEVE(NEYE BFE A&
B AREMEE) REEXHH
EUuEMBE RSB MNBENE
SER)METE °

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIMHREFHBA FRBEE

Year ended Year ended
2013 2012 2013 2012

5la Bk

—E-=f Z—TET——F
LEE g =—=8B-—=Z% Z—T—_fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETI AR®BTR AR®Tx

(Restated)

(&7
PRC (country of domicile) & & (FrEEK) 458,891 518,972 293,412 321,233
Hong Kong & 12,786 14,221 1,137 1,082
Singapore N 2,184 1,614 - —
Thailand S 2,032 3,137 - -
Malaysia 5 i 1,598 428 - —
Others B 166 — — _
Total MBEt 477,657 538,372 294,549 323,215

Information about major customers FEEERMA

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, none
of the Group’s individual customer contributed more than
10% to the total turnover of the Group.

BHIE—Z—=FM=_F—Z=-F+
—A=+—BLEE XEESG
EEXFPMNHEEEBBRBEXE
FAAY10% ©
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8. Other Income 8. Hthlr A
2013 2012
—=E—= —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTT
(Restated)
(&5
Continuing operations BERSEER
Bank interest income AT B U A 834 1,124
Gain on sales of scrap materials iR B RE R E 1,060 687
Investment income & W = 36
Net foreign exchange gains PE H U 2 ) F B8 = 110
Gain on disposals of property, plant  E B ¥ - HE &
and equipment B R 280 —
Reversal of impairment loss on Z 5 EWHKIERE
trade receivables 5 [o] 2,717 —
Others HAh 517 528
5,408 2,485
9. Finance Costs 9. BEMAK
2013 2012
—E—=5F —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTT
Continuing operations HESEXEK
Interest on secured bank loans AFEREBHEEEEDN
wholly repayable within five years EEBIERITERNEE
B 702 731
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+-—BLLEE

10. Taxation

Tax charge for the year represents:

10. B 18

REFIERE -
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——-%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Continuing operations BEKSEEK
Deferred tax (note 26) EEMET
Reversal of temporary differences T =REmE g

— (82,605)

(@  Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a
PRC subsidiary of the Group, was qualified as a HNTE
in 2009 and the qualification was renewed and valid
until 2014. However, Bawang Guangzhou did not have
any assessable profits subject to Enterprise Income
Tax for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(b) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided as the Group did not have any assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for both
years.

REGBEECEMETE(LR
ERBBEDREEMRED
AERGED > REBERFE
AMHKBARTAE —TTN
F—A—HEBRR25% -

FPRECERSHEATL
XHEBaEmetE(SH
R E|)ZE MESZ
B EAUAZEHE15%H
BEMRE-BLT(EMN)BR
ARAI(BEIEMDRA-ZE
NFEHWREESFHEME
¥ VYR _-_T-—"FHAE
RE-ZBERNBEKRRE =
E—_FFr_ZF—OF-R
m BHE=ZFT—=Fk=_F
——F+-_A=+—HItF
B AEBIRBETHRNER
M ST Z ERB R F o

HE-_ZT—=6k=_Z—=
F+-_A=Z+—BLWF
B AEBILLETRAER
MEBEBMEH 2 ERN &
Bl FIAYEERS BFE
TR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+_-A=+-—BLLEE

10. Taxation (continued)

()

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for the
current and previous years.

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of the EIT Law,
overseas investors of foreign investment companies
shall be liable for withholding income tax at 10% on
the dividend derived from the profits of PRC
subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2008, unless
the tax rate is reduced by treaty. Pursuant to the Sino-
Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements, the investor
established in Hong Kong which is the beneficiary
owner holding not less than 25% of the equity interests
of its PRC subsidiaries can enjoy a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on the dividend received
from its PRC subsidiaries. The Group did not make
provision of withholding income tax for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 since the PRC
subsidiaries incurred losses in both years.

10. B I8 ()

(©)

REFASHEES N EBR X E
50 R R R ARG AN EE
ARAREARNFEHNRES
HENMEBREZESNEMA
MR -

BB ZEMGHEEEK
- -BZFEFENF—H—H
M BRIEEIGRA BRI X
IINEHIREERNEINGE &
AFRBEFEKNBRR G
T E I B B S 10% T8 0 Fr 15
Ho-RBE@#EPEMBES
BT REBE LK
BEEWNMRFBAEREKNE R A
TER2%Ez B AX =
EA A ZERRE EAE
B B A B &9 A% B A B R TE 0
TR EE5% - MR REH B
AEEAEBE BERAEE
REBEE_ZE—=FE=_F—
—E+ZA=+t—HHEE
W8 BEHIRTBIMFTETR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

10. Taxation (continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

10. B I8 ()

FABRBERGEBERZIBAE

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BERWOT :
follows:
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt AR T T
(Restated)
(&E7)
Continuing operations BEREEL
Loss before taxation M AR (136,891) (437,270)
Tax calculated at the domestic BTSN R25%TE
income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) T MIE(ZE——FF :
25%) (34,223) (109,318)
Effect of different tax rates of entities 7 £t &) 35 #E [& 48 %
operating in other jurisdictions ZARABEIBGE T E 7,391 13,730
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~a] 15 & B 2 i 15 & £
for tax purpose 8,732 3,334
Tax effect of income not taxable HERMMAZ G E
for tax purpose (987) —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R IERIIFE B Z MG & 18,694 56,953
Tax effect of other deductible AERAHBERE=R
temporary differences not ZMBTE
recognised 393 1,885
Bonus deduction of research and M MMAZERZ N
development expenses (note) kR (B FE) - (1,493)
Income tax on concessionary rate RIEBRE A - 34,909
Effect of reversal of deferred tax NI FERLEMERH
assets recognised in prior year BERBD  HGETE - 82,605
Taxation I8 - 82,605

Note: According to Tax Notice on Provisional Administrative Measures governing
Pre-EIT Deduction of Research and Development Expenses (Guoshuifa
[2008] No. 116) issued by the State Administration of Taxation, effective
from 1 January 2008, research and development expenses, which are not
capitalised, are qualified for bonus deduction for income tax purpose, i.e.
an additional 50% of such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 26.

M5 « 1R 3R B R B 75 48 /3 78 46 A9 10 2008 4F
1ATERERNCEEREFRZEEA
i /0 40 BR & 2R 9% 0% ) (B B 3% [2008] 58
116%%) * RENMEMMERFAEE R
AIETE FTS BiRFEfT NG 30BR - BN
RZERASO%TEN B EINR
TR AT ANETF0RR o

BEIEFTIS A R RE26 -
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RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E-F-=F+-A=+-BLFE

B

= —=

11. Loss for the year from Continuing 11. }—i; BREXBK 2FRNE
Operations

Loss for the year from continuing operations has been

arrived at after charging (crediting):

FEREEBZRAMEBERE K
(FFA) THIER :

2013 2012
=4 —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Auditor’s remuneration % &R B & 673 1,600
Cost of inventories recognised as RAERI ZFERK
an expense (note (a)) (KT 5% (a)) 246,066 312,609
Depreciation of property, plant Mk BERZBITE
and equipment 27,440 21,689
Impairment loss on property, plant Y BB RREREEXKX
and equipment (included in GTAEMER)
other expenses) 17,093 —
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & U 7% 18 )l (8 18 & — 3,840
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ BEEW X - BE &
and equipment REHEKX — 25,065
Net foreign exchange loss ER B FE 34 -
Provision for litigation (included in FRFTIREAGIAEM
other expenses) ZHH) 1,826 -
Research and development HaELTEER
costs recognised as an expense 17,862 30,948
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & B (B % % #: Bl (5t A
(included in cost of inventories FEXA BEERAERAXR)
recognised as an expense above) (9,957) (49,676)
Staff costs (note (b)) 8 T A (Bt aE (b)) 132,566 225,454
Write-down of inventories (included in 7 & W% B X & Gt AT E
cost of inventories recognised as R BRERAERY)
an expense above) 3,289 16,855
Write-off of inventories (included in FE#HREGIATERE
cost of inventories recognised as EERAERAR)
an expense above) 12,592 59,988
Write-off of other receivables H th FE W R IE SR (BT A
(included in other expenses) HEBA) 439 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

11. Loss for the year from Continuing N FEREXEB Z2FAE
Operations (continued) =1 )
Notes: B & -
(@) Cost of inventories recognised as expenses from continuing operations @) SERKEEBPRER AR ZEE

included depreciation of property, plant and equipment and staff costs of
approximately RMB21,695,000 (2012: RMB6,872,000) and
RMB39,172,000 (2012: RMB49,807,000) respectively. The amounts were
also included in the respective amounts disclosed above.

(b) Staff costs from the continuing operations included redundancy costs of (o)
approximately RMB9,679,000 (2012: RMB4,330,000) for the year ended
31 December 2013.

RABREEEEENERE IKR
2 R4 A R #21,695000( =& — =
FE: AR ¥6872000) kAR
39,172,000( —E——FF: AR
49,807,000 A L& EBHE S BB E
TN ERFEBESESF -

HE-_Z2—=F+=-A=+—81
FE BECEEBTREIRARIE
EHMBRAHARKIE79,000( == —
—®FE : AR ¥4,330,000) °

12. Staff Costs 12. B T AN
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARET
(Restated)
(E7)
Continuing operations BERSEER
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BRE
emoluments) comprise: BEEME)
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REF 127,056 217,370
Contributions to retirement RIKAE R ET 83X
benefits schemes 4,595 6,187
Equity-settled share-based payment LA B& 42 25 45 B 30 LA BR 19 /&
Bt 915 1,897
132,566 225,454
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B

= —F =

E-E-=ZH+-A=+—HLFE

13. Discontinued Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of
the Company resolved to discontinue the production and
sales of its herbal tea products due to the unsatisfactory
financial performance of the business of the herbal tea
products with effect from 1 July 2013.

As the herbal tea products segment represents a separate
major line of business of the Group, the discontinuance of
production and sales of herbal tea products has constituted
a discontinued operation. The comparative figures in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss have been restated
to re-present the herbal tea products as a discontinued
operation.

The results of the herbal tea products operation for the year

13. AR IL & EFK

REBEE_T—=F+=ZRA=+—
HEFEA BRRAXEMKLE
MRTIERE REERAER_Z
—ZFtLtA—HELZFXERN
EEREE -

ENERERDBRRTAKH
—EEBNETEEMR  FLILR
REGOWEEMHEBKERLL
REXH -HREBDZRPHHLR
BFrEFACRIERENRRER
mE%l e

ERERREMFZFHERBE_F

ended 31 December 2013 were as follows: —=FIFEMEEDOT :

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AR®ET

Turnover - 723 17,583
Cost of sales 5 & B AR (2,046) (31,297)
Other income H A A 2,477 866
Selling and distribution costs HERDHERAX (6,397) (83,903)
Administrative expenses EBRER (328) (898)
Other expenses HEmEA (1,040) (45)
Loss before taxation MRl EE (6,611) (97,694)
Taxation 518 — _
Loss for the year FAEIE (6,611) (97,694)
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BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

13. Discontinued Operation (continued) 13. ER U RBE XK (&
Loss for the year from discontinued operation includes the BRI ERNEENERNEES
following: AT &FIE -
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Bank interest income |ITH B U A

Cost of inventories recognised as HRERI ZEERKAK
an expense

Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BEIXREITE

and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant ME - HELRREBREERX
and equipment (included in GFAHEMER)
other expenses above)

Loss on disposal of property, plant EEME BMEMEED
and equipment (included in BEXGIAEMER)
other expenses above)

Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & &k {Z 2 & # [0l

(included in cost of inventories GTATFERAR
recognised as an expense above) EHRBHAX)

Staff costs (note) 8 T A (FT7E)

Write-off of other receivables H A 8 UK TE 8
(included in other expenses above) GtAEMER)

Write-back of trade and other B 5 & H M N FRIE
payables 5 [o]

Write-down of inventories FEKEER
(included in cost of inventories GTATFERA -
recognised as an expense above) EHRBAX)

Write-off of inventories (included in FEHEE
cost of inventories recognised as GtATFEKA -
an expense above) BRERAERALS)

(2 (82)
2,046 31,297
213 405
645 —
13 —

= (5,034)
1,521 15,833
150 —
(2,471) —
854 8,748
462 3,853

No charge or credit arose on loss on discontinuance of the
operation.

Note: Staff costs from discontinued operation included redundancy costs of
approximately RMB482,000 (2012: RMB19,000) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Annua

RIEREXBZEBEBRY EBELE
A RE K RIER -

Mz - BE-—Z—=%+=-HA=+—81I
FE- E%HW‘%%WP%IJ&ZM
FERERANARK482,000(=
ZFE : AR¥19,000) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-_Z—=Fft+-A=+—HLEEE

183. Discontinued Operation (continued)

Net cash outflows on discontinued operation are as follows:

13. B 1k

ﬁ(« = % ﬁ%

ERIEHRRERFRESR -

2013 2012

—E—=F —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBTF T
Operating activities LB EH) (19,368) (42,064)
Investing activities REED (267) (541)
(19,635) (42,605)

14. Dividends

14. KRB

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2012: nil).

15. Loss Per Share 15

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
from continuing and discontinued operations of
approximately RMB143,502,000 (2012: RMB617,569,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,910,971,000 (2012: 2,910,159,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the period.

$¢Wi#ﬁ%ﬂf&ﬁ§ﬂ%§iﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ

B 5 2 %88 R 5 A B £
BE(CE——FF: M)
B & B

RERFREERBRERILE
BEXRE

RARREBEABEREFELE
X RERIEREXEB 2ERE
ARBEGEEEREIFELE:?
BRERIKCEER ZFRNER
AN R 143,502,000 = F — — 4
E: AR#617,569,000) & £ ¥k 8
MABETETERMEFSEHD
2,910,971,000 (=& — —F & :
2,910,159,000 /%) 5+ & -
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15. Loss Per Share (continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year from continuing
operations of approximately RMB136,891,000 (2012:
RMB519,875,000) and the weighted average number of
approximately 2,910,971,000 (2012: 2,910,159,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the period.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the Company is
RMBO0.002 per share (2012: RMB0.033 per share), based
on the loss for the year from the discontinued operation of
approximately RMB6,611,000 (2012: RMB97,694,000) and
the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
loss per share.

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
diluted loss per share is same as the basic loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options as the effect is
anti-dilutive.

15. BIREIE (@)

REFREERSE

AABBEBEARLBELEED
LEREARBEEERBER
BREEB ZFRANEBEBOAR
#136,891,000( — B — — F & :
A E #519,875,000) & 2 ¥R A RS
WEZETE@EBRMNEFSHLY
2,910,971,000R (= —=—F & :
2,910,159,000 %) 5T & -

REEKRLEEERY

KA BEBEARMLBERIELE:
BZEREAREBZEEAER
ARBOOR(ZE——FE: AR
#0.033) ' EBEE K IFE & X
ZEARNBELHARESG,611,000(=
T —_FE: AR®97,694,000)
REXFHFLISEREAREBEESRE
FTARZDE:E -

@;ﬁ:%—zg&:;i:$+
A+ -BLEFENSRESE
BIEERSHREAEIE -

HRARRIMNEREEERES
ME FILNEFEHZE-_ZT —=
FR—_FT——_F+=-_A=+—H
TFEEREEEEAEK TER
RATEFEMR ARG A BB HE -
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BHE-_Z—=Fft+-A=+—HLEEE

16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 16. EERETETHAEMH
Emoluments =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2012: ENSENNANEZ(ZE——FF
eight) directors and the chief executive were as follows: NZB)EEREBETHRAE ZB&
wm
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_ZE—=F1+"_B=+—
BiLFE
Retirement
Salaries, benefits Share-based
allowances scheme payments
Name of director ExEB Fees andbenefits  contributions (note (a)) Total
U5 5
2R il BINEF BN
we REF HE L (KieE()) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR%®TR AR®TT AR%TR AR®TR

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman) B BB 5E 4 (F /&) = = - - -
Ms. WAN Yuhua BxEx+

(Chief Executive Officer) (BEE#ITE) = - - - -
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi (note (b)) 3t /N 5% 4 (HF 32 b)) - 647 5 - 652
Mr. WONG Sin Yung BEERLE - 1,214 11 195 1,420

Non-Executive Director ~ JE#{7&E =

Ms. GUO Jing (note (o)) &L (F b)) 97 - - - 97
Independent B
Non-Executive Directors 3 #HTES
Dr. NGAI Wai Fung REEREBL 277 = — — 277
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi MR B 1 2 198 - _ _ 198
Mr. LI Bida FNELE 198 — — - 198
770 1,861 16 195 2,842
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16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 16. EENRFTEITHA S
Emoluments (continued) % ()
For the year ended 31 December 2012 g#F_=——F+_-_A=+—
HiEFE
Retirement
Salaries, benefits ~ Share-based
allowances scheme payments
Name of director EEEE Fees  and benefits contributions (note (a)) Total
AR 7
e EHY RKER  ERANK
we &Rl BEETA (P 5E () @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETR ARBTT AREBTT ARETR

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman) 5 8R4 4 (3 &) - - - - -
Ms. WAN Yuhua BEELLT

(Chief Executive Officer) (BE#TE) - - - - -
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi VLN S - 1,622 M 491 2,124
Mr. WONG Sin Yung BEEREE - 1,622 " 368 2,001

Non-Executive Director ~ ¥ #{TES

Ms. GUO Jing BB L 243 — — — 243
Independent B
Non-Executive Directors 3 #H{TEE
Dr. NGAI Wai Fung REEEL 324 - - - 304
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi BRI 243 - _ _ 043
Mr. LI Bida TRERE 243 — - — 243
1,053 3,244 22 859 5,178
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BHE-_Z—=Fft+-A=+—HLEEE

16.

17.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(@) These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 3. The details of
these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options
granted, are disclosed in note 28.

(b) The directors resigned on 28 May 2013.

No director and chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.

Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2012: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
16 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2012:
three) individuals were as follows:

16.

17.

EEREFZTHAESHH

€ )
Bt 5

@ ZEABRBEAQARABERETEET
EEERENGEEE  ZSERE
MEEDNERASERG X HHR
SR ETHKRTE FRMFE3 %
ERIMNFE RERLERENE
TR REE - SAKFE28 -

b)) ZEER-_ZT—=FRA=-+NH
BH(E o

BIF—2—=kK-—_ZT——F+=
AZ+—B AEEEESENLH
TEEREXRBRETMAME -

8 T ¥ b

IfUEEHEMALH  WE(ZF
——FE-MUARESF REH
BB FE16 R - B E M = 4
R MATHFMFRET

2013 2012

—E—= T F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ARETF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits Ha -~ EZAE REF 639 2,211
Retirement benefits scheme RIRKE TRFET IR

contributions 45 113

Share-based payments VAR 19 A 208 89 2 A+t 260 -

944 2,324
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17. Employees’ Emoluments (continued) 17.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ETHMN @)

HINE R IATAER

Number of employees

EIAH
2013 2012
—_E—= —E—-—%F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to = Z % 751,000,000
approximately RMB792,000 (HHE R K AR 792,000
(2012: RMB811,000)) (ZE—ZFF:
AR #811,000)) 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7 7C.1,000,001 &
(equivalent to approximately 7 781,500,000
RMB792,001 to RMB1,187,000 (FEE R4 AR 792,001
(2012: RMB811,001 to = AR 1,187,000
RMB1,217,000)) (ZE2—ZFF:
AR#811,001 2
AR #1,217,000)) — 1
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) or other
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Annual

REE-_ZT—=F,k=_F—_F
TZRA=+—-HILEFEHH &
% TEXNME T AEERA

EeFMAL(BREERET)
iﬁ@%?*%%%%%kﬁ%
INEE AN S BB 2 B S 1F R BE R
f e

Report 2018 — T —=FF{ 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=—F+_A=+—HILEE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment

18. % - BEKRE

Office
Leasehold Motor  equipment Display Construction
Buildings  Machinery  improvements vehicles  and others furniture  in progress Total
REHRE BAZRE
EE - 1 BEXE E®HIA REf RTEE EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTL ARBTT ARBFL ARBTRE ARBTT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
COST B
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F
—H—H 6,371 49,868 - 14,273 25,692 19,721 109,273 225,098
Additions "B 207 1,428 — 808 2,887 4,653 174,350 184,333
Disposals Le (1,084) (13,829) (965) (7,435) (23,704) - (47,011)
Transfer from construction & # B 78 &
in progress I - 27,448 132,533 - 2,215 - (162,196) -
At 31 December 2012 and A= F——F
1 January 2013 +-A=+—8
k=ZF-=%
—R—AH 5,494 64,921 132,633 14,116 23,259 670 121,427 362,420
Exchange realignment B 5 % - - - @12) (69) - - (481)
Additions nE — 6,440 2,380 11 477 248 9,338 18,894
Disposals HeE - - - (1,898) (1,346) - - (3,244)
Transfer from construction & & 752
in progress I - 46,981 2,286 - 5 - (49,272) -
At 31 December 2013 ~ HZE—=%
+-A=+—"H 5,494 118,342 137,199 11,817 22,326 918 81,493 377,589
ACCUMULATED REE:
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2012 R-_Z——F
—A—H 348 17,374 — 9,152 9,580 4,089 — 40,543
Depreciation provided £ AT E B
for the year 268 5,567 193 2,364 4,664 9,038 — 22,094
Eliminated on disposals & 5 f 44 (38) (4,604) - 652) (3,451) (13,091) - (21,836)
At 31 December 2012 and R =ZF——F
1 January 2013 +-B=1+—H
R-B-=%
—A—H 578 18,337 193 10,864 10,793 36 — 40,801
Depreciation provided AT E &
for the year 247 7,897 13,408 1,315 4,405 381 — 27,653
Impairment loss recognised B i 2 X185 2
in profit or loss AE - 5,747 6,890 69 451 35 4,546 17,738
Eliminated on disposals 1} & B £ 44 - - - (1,385) (1,105) - - (2,490)
Exchange realignment R - - - (363) 6) - - (369)
At31December 2013 RZZT—=%
+-A=+—8 825 31,981 20,491 10,500 14,538 452 4,546 83,333
CARRYING VALUES REE:
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=ZA=1+—-H 4,669 86,361 116,708 1,317 7,788 466 76,947 294,256
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE—-F
+-A=1+-H 4916 46,584 132,340 3,252 12,466 634 121,427 321,619
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings EE

Machinery 28

Leasehold improvements KEHENR M
Motor vehicles BT H

Office equipment and others MAERBEREAM
Display furniture RREE

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use. Upon completion and commissioning for
operation, depreciation will be provided at the appropriate
rates specified above.

All buildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the management
conducted a review of the property, plant and equipment
which were used in the continuing operations and
determined that those assets were impaired with reference
to their value in use. Accordingly, impairment loss of
approximately RMB17,093,000 (2012: nil) has been
recognised under other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The value in use calculation is
determined based on the financial budgets covering a ten-
year period which is reference to the estimated useful life of
the assets, and a pre-tax discount rate of 17.73%, approved
by the management of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the management
conducted a review of the manufacturing assets which were
used for the production of herbal tea products and
determined that a number of those assets were impaired
due to idleness following discontinued operation.
Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately RMB645,000
(2012: nil) has been recognised under other expenses of
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December
2013.

18. M3 - BME KR E(E)

TERERME W R BB
MASBEAERAHBBEE
BT 50 FE B AT 2 PR 4F B R E O
S -

20 years 204F
10 years 104
10 years 104
5-8 years 5-84F
5 years 54

2 years 24

ERTRETFRFAE BEEER
EEE LT WEIATEAMN
R-BHETTRRAEER §i&
EXFEEE L RFARAHRITE

AEBEANMBREYHLR
B R BE o

BHE-_ZET-—=%+-_A=t+—H
LFEE BEEEHRARNGELE
EBODE BMEERBETT
BEYNZEENEREEER
BEERENZ2EZ - REBXOA
R #17,093,0000( = F — ZF & :
B)DRERN GRS Ba R A
ERRN-HEEMNEREEBERE K
SEHEEEZ2EZHEEMNMGEE
P BR K2 752 Bl 3T 3R K 17.73% 1 R
SHHI10FHHEEERGTE -

Hz_Z2—=%F+-A=+—H
HTEE EEESRAREERE
REAEMHNME BELEXEE
TR BRI WE BEK K
BERIESEEBEMEE L HE
TREBX - HEMBREBEERXLD
AR ¥645000 2 — - F F:
) BRERHREDRIELEE £
REMERA -
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18.

19.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged certain
machinery and equipment, part of which are included in
construction in progress, with a net book value of
approximately RMB75,351,000 (2013: nil) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Biological Assets

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the
cultivation base located in the PRC.

18.

19.

Y3 - BB K R e (48)

R—_ZE——F+-_A=+—8"
RNEBEETP—THHKERMR
B ZEREEEAFEHNAR
# 75,351,000 T —=FF : &)
CERIRAREBRALTFAER

HBERE -

EYMEE

EMEERBUNPEAENE
EEWEEENPEZ-

2013 2012

—E-—= —_EF—-—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
At 1 January K—A—H 1,978 2,246

Changes in fair value less costs N EERBEEKAR

to sell MEEER (223) (6695)
Plantation expenditure ER I 410 443
Herbs harvested during the year IR F U ) B B (109) (46)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 2,056 1,978
Non-current portion ER BB D 170 142
Current portion TEER D 1,886 1,836
At 31 December N+—_B=+—H 2,056 1,978

Plantation expenditure comprises those costs that are
directly attributable to the cultivation of herbs including
seeds, fertilisers, pesticides, direct labour, operating lease
charges on farmland and other direct costs.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had 375
hectares of growing herbs.

BEXHLERUTEERRENER
PEENKARERT B R
B -HEEREAT RANKEHESR
RIAREMBERKA

BE—T—=F+_A=+—H
FE AESEERIGLERBEN

e

hEL-
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19. Biological Assets (continued) 19.

Biological assets are stated at fair value less costs to sell at
the end of the reporting period as estimated by an
independent appraiser using the net present value approach
whereby projected future net cash flows were discounted to
provide a current market value of the biological assets.

The following unobservable inputs were used in level 3 fair
value measurements of the Group’s biological assets:

Range of unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs  (weighted average)

TABREEHR TR BEEREE (nHEFI9E)

EYEE®

REBHPRNENEEAR B
BEREEKRANETHE HEE
A& 98 L YR S B AR R E TR
ETREEF e ZFBMEHEDE
ENEELETHGER HWEAX
KERERELETHR Uit E
ZEMBEENRTHSEE-

AT AEMENEESSRARE
HEZRTBEAR :

Relations of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FABEREREAAEBEZ
e

Growing herbs yield 30 — 750 (665) per year
— kg per hectare

TE 2 BB 4 30-750(665)
—BRETR

Growing herbs price RMB4 — RMB100 (RMB19) per kg

BHEZPEEER BTRARK4I— ARB100(ARK19)

Discount rate 11% (11%) per annum
iR & FFE11%(11%)

The discount rates used in the valuation of the biological
assets in the PRC as the end of the reporting period were
based on the market-determined pre-tax rate.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
biological assets, the highest and best use of the biological
assets is their current use.

Annual

The higher the growing herbs yield,
the higher the fair value

BREZHEZERKBS
NRBEESS

The higher the market price,
the higher the fair value

BEZHPEETESES
AnfBESS

The higher the discount rate,

the lower the fair value
BEHEEFTREYS 20
EEBK

REFHR SRTBEEENE
MEEGBEERZARAETEZER
™58 R 2 B A A =K o

\

HERTRE-—FEMAELE
HE -RIAEBEEMWEEZAAE
mME AMEEZREREME
REBREZFERE -
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19. Biological Assets (continued) 19. £ EE (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of EMEBEEZBEREMEEIR AL ET
biological assets on recurring basis: E¥ER
Growing
herbs
BEzPEZE
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=%F—H—H 1,978
Addition NE 410
Change in fair value due to transformation MRERBEmNES 2 AAEBEE (223)
Transfer to inventory [ oy e e (109)
At 31 December 2013 N-_E—=%F+=-_A=+—H 2,056
The above change in fair value recognised in profit or loss of NEREBEPBRRAZAREBEE
approximately RMB223,000 are presented on the face of A ANREE223000E Rz B B
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and is XEER RZEHNHHEREAE
attributable to the change in unrealised gains or losses MEEMBZRERNEXEE
relating to biological assets held at the end of the reporting 2EH o
period.
The Group is exposed to demand risks arising from AEEEHIRBEMNMTIRE (LR
environmental and climatic changes. To mitigate these risks, WERER - AERELRER K&
the Group does not rely on the self-supply of herbs, but ErSEERBEANPTEL  [F
also sources herbs from a number of external suppliers. BFihem—EHEZITHER

SN o

128 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 F Bl (£ E) 1 R A R 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

20. Inventories 20. 78

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFTT
Raw materials Rt 8,467 14,000
Work-in-progress TR 5 2,762 3,717
Finished goods B AL 27,974 31,325

Packing materials and BEME KEFE R
consumable goods 16,138 15,759
55,341 64,801

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was an
increase in the net realisable value following a decrease in
selling expenses. As a result, a reversal of write-down of
inventories of approximately RMB9,957,000 (2012:
RMB54,710,000) has been recognised and included in cost
of sales in the current year.

21. Trade and Other Receivables

BEHE_ZT—=F+=-_A=+—
HEFFEA AR FERBEE
M TEkmER Al HARE
9,957,000 (ZE——FEF : AR
54,710,000) v 7 E % B & & [
ERERERAFTFERRERES
AR o

21. EG REMEWFIE

2013 2012

—_Eg—= —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt AR T T

Trade receivables g 5 EWE 89,937 102,271
Less: Accumulated impairment & 2EHRE (4,640) (7,357)
85,297 94,914

Prepayment for purchase of BERMRBENRKIE

raw materials 1,285 4,330
Short-term prepaid advertising fee NESEESER 3,958 31,433
Other receivables H b & W 5K I8 4,382 7,484

Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWHRIESR 94,922 138,161

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers.

AEBE-—RETEZIEFPZFY
EEHRI0ENH -

Annual Report 2013 =& — =444 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+_-A=+-—BLLEE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(@)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
net of impairment, presented based on the due date at

21.

B 5 R EHMEWFIE @)

REINHEZ2IZE HER
A (HRREE) X 2 H% 8K

(@)

the end of the reporting period: ZERESNAOT

2013 2012

=4 —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTF T

Neither past due nor impaired B ER 56,742 59,250

Less than 3 months past due wE DA 3{E A 20,937 29,232

More than 3 months but less than wmEA3E6MEA

6 months past due 6,790 5,970
More than 6 months but less than mEeE121@ A

12 months past due 372 395

More than 12 months past due wmEZ 1218 A 456 67

28,555 35,664

85,297 94,914

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB28,555,000 (2012:
RMB35,664,000) which were past due at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Receivables that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over the trade and other
receivables.

A 4 30 50 2 AL 18 40 BB Lk 3 O
BRES2EF REAH
I 360 A R A0 -

REFBR AEEHNE R
HESEEEEREREZES
FEWRBLEBGIRTMAED A
R #28,555,000( — & — —
FE: AR ¥35,664,000) °
i1 HA 18 4 R (B A B Ui ZROE R
ETBIYUEFER %ZEX
FHASENXRSEHER
Fo-AHREAERLEEKX
Bt BZEEHTNERAE
AR EWE - BIENAEL
B EEERGESIZSE
ERELRERE - N&EE
I 4% 5t 5% 5 R U K B R IR
REHRHEEMERS -
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(b)

21. B KH

b J& WS FRIE ()

Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade o) B 5 FIER R E BEE
receivables: §j3 g
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
At 1 January n—H—H 7,357 3,617
Impairment loss recognised ERRZBERLK = 3,840
Reversal of impairment loss EERZBEELED
recognised (2,717) —
At 31 December R+—-—HA=+—H 4,640 7,357
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade receivables RZE—=ZF+=A=+
of approximately RMB4,640,000 (2012: —HB XEBEHAREK
RMB7,357,000) were individually determined to be 4,640,000(ZFE—=—FF : A

impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that full amount of these
receivables is unlikely to be recovered. Consequently
full provisions for these doubtful debts were
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2012, certain trade receivables
with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB85,095,000 (2013: nil) were pledged as security
for the secured bank loans (note 24).

R #&7,357,000) K & 5 & B 5K
THC B R R & T RE R
Ko Z5E R E R R E R E
WREEFERBAMBERKEZE -
mMEBEEEEFEHRBTER
B B pE R SR IE o A i AR
SEEHZEREBREZ2H
BE AEBTERZELS
ﬁ??ﬁﬁﬁﬂjﬁﬁ#ﬁ oA °

A
+—B8 £
85095000(:2
%) 1 FE K
E%Eﬁ#ﬁfﬁ
EERE -

—®+ = A =
CHEHOARE
=FE:
BRI B A
‘%’K(Bﬁﬁ%)ﬁ’]
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22. Restricted Bank Balances/Bank Balances
and Cash

Restricted bank balances

As at 31 December 2013, one of the bank accounts of a
subsidiary, Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Ltd. (‘Bawang
Beverage”) was frozen pursuant to a civil order (see note
34). The bank balance carries interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates of 0.35% (2012: nil) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

22.

B3
R
2
S5
BN
Bt
;';t
N
-\
I

R-F—=f+t-A=+—8"
MEARBE(RE)RBER
AE(HERBD & —@ERITIR
FERERSHRAGGRME
34) - |MITHEREREEBRARTHF
TOF B F N XR0.36%F B (ZF —
—FEE) -

BTRFERRA&
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Cash at bank and in hand RITMFHEIRS 43,302 194,608
Short-term bank deposit MEIRITER - 30,000
Bank balances and cash ROTEFREES 43,302 224,608

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, cash at bank carries
interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates
of 0.001% to 0.35% (2012: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum.
At 31 December 2012, short-term bank deposit, with
maturity less than three months when placed, carries
interest rate of 2.85% (2013: nil) per annum.

REBE—Z=ZFK T ——F+—
A=+—B 7R ESHR
T ¥ B F F) ZE0.001% E0.35%
—E—_FE:0001%ZE0.35%)
FEMNB R —Z—F+ = A
=+—B8 - 2HBHETEBE=1EAH
/)52 B8R 17 17 IR F Fl £2.85%
ZE—=FEE)GEMNE -

132 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B (% (£ &) % i & R A &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=Ft+-A=+—HLEE

23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B 5 N H fth B3 FXIE
2013 2012
=F—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Trade payables B SR RIE 48,871 59,738
Receipt in advance TE UL F IR 23,380 18,791
Promotion fee payable EREEEA 39,716 49,390
Accrued payroll FENTITE 4,211 19,144
Other payables and accrual HibENRBERTERE A 95,943 100,722
Total trade and other payables B NEMENTIESS 212,121 247,785
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RIBFZNEAZ5 28 5 ENKIE
presented based on the due date at the end of the reporting REBBPRZERDTAT :
period:
2013 2012
—EFE-—= —_EF—-—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®ETT

Due within 1 month or on demand 18 B AR B ok il AE R 42,963 51,911
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11 3 14 {8 7 3 & A A 2| &8 5,908 7,827
48,871 59,738
The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. REEEGE THEESRNNIOE
The Group has financial risk management policies in place 90H - A B EHEMNM KRR
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit EIRRBSIR BT A M RIE KR
timeframe. B o
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24. Secured Bank Loans

24. EEHERITER

2013 2012

—=E—= —EF——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR%®TR

Repayable within one year —FRNEE — 76,390

The balance as at 31 December 2012 represented the loans
drawn down from the banking facility by Bawang
Guangzhou at interest rates of 5.6% to 6% per annum. The
loans have various maturities of approximately one month to
one year.

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans are secured by the
Group’s machinery and equipment and trade receivables
with carrying amounts of approximately RMB75,351,000
and RMB85,095,000 respectively. The bank loans are also
jointly guaranteed by the Controlling Shareholders of the
Group and Guangzhou Bawang.

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—HK
BITEREHEETEMNKET
MEPRRERORE HFMNXA
56%%E6% ' HRAN A —HAZE—
FREMNER -

R-_E——F#+-_HA=+—8"
ZETERUNETREAEARK
75,351,000 7 # 25 3% B A1 A R &
85,095,000 ) & U X B 1E B 1K 18
WHAEEZRBEREEMNSE L
HEHER -

25. Provisions 25. T IR % 1E
Provision for
litigation
RAAGTIRER
RMB’000
AR T T
At 1 January and 31 December 2012 RZE——ZF—H—HRK -
+=ZA=+—8H
Provision recognised FHRERAER 1,826
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-_A=+—H 1,826

Provision for litigation is made based on management best
estimates and judgement, as described in note 4. Details of
the litigations are set out in note 35. As at 31 December
2013, the litigations are still pending for final court
judgement.

SR EEARTAL - AR B AR A
REEE RGOS - B
90 5 30 ¥ 15 B B B SES551 89 o
—F-=F+=A=+—AL:
ZA DI SRR BAS SR o
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26. Deferred Tax 26. & i Bi 18
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) TEREEMBEE(RBBE)FAHR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and ARITFEEREEMT :
prior years:
Advertising and

promotional expenses
exceeding the

deduction allowance Undistributed
Inventory limit in the current year profits of PRC
provision  Accruals  to be carried forward Tax losses subsidiary Others Total
THETFEERS
FERE REBERRB HENELR
£ ERER AFENRRENDS REEE ROBAE Hity @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETRT AR%TR
At 1 January 2012 —E-C-F
—-A-A 7,383 4,192 32,078 38,725 (2,031) 227 80,574
Charged to profit or loss 3t A%
(note 10) (f7E10) (7,383) (4,192) (32,078) (38,725) - (221) (82,605)
At 31 December 2012 and —E——F
31 December 2013 +-A=t-8
—T-=F
+ZA=+—H - - - - (2,031) - (2,031)

Deferred tax assets recognised prior to 2012 were reviewed
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and were
reduced to the extent that it was no longer probable that the
related benefit would be realised based on the management
assessment. The reversal of deferred tax assets was
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately RMB837,014,000 (2012:
RMB760,481,000) and RMB34,530,000 (2012:
RMB33,046,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC will expire in five years
from the year which the loss originated, while the ones
incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire
under current tax legislation in Hong Kong.

ZE - F AR R IE T IR
BEEREBLIE=ZTE—Z=—F+=ZH=
+—RALEFERETEHNTER
EEE M EAEEN R
e EIR BN T A EROR -
BEEHBEEENBER_T—=
FHABRHR(CE—=FF: &)

R—EE—=F+=-_HA=+—8"
AEBGBARFBEEEESETH
B~ | oK Bk AT 008 A B TS S 1B
2 Rl# A R #837,014,000( =& —
—FE: AR¥760,481,000) A1 A
R #34,530,000( =& — = F & :
AR #33,046,000) - H&F - iR
B S B B B A B PTEE A 2 B 7S S
BEREBEEZBEBEBRRECE
FARNE - MBEEENKE QA
EXNBBEEEIEREREAER
TR A B M Em e
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E-E-=ZH+-A=+—HLFE

26. Deferred Tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB331,656,000
(2012: RMB342,451,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB8,124,000 (2012:
RMB8,124,000). Deferred tax liability has been recognised
in respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

20.

I 3 B 18 ()

R—E—=F+=-_HA=+—8"
AREETHBNEREZEDN A
A R #331,656,000( — & — = 4
& AR #342,451,000) o I £
fa] B AT $0 % AR 1 = 2 W iR
BEEMBEE EABEIKA
R mAAEES E A KI0E
RriE = ReEHER -

N 2HMEAR - o= E BB
RAIRDPEBAEHBEE R
BEELEMBEABOARARE
8,124,000 (ZFE—=—FF : ARK
8,124,000) - HR AEE —HEE
FlERMEEERO0MNEBE mE
HEHRA L] 78 B AR K H
Teb fIAZEZEEER
REEFIEEE -
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27. Share Capital and Reserves

27. B K =16

(a) Share capital (a) B&&E
Number of
shares
BaEE
‘000 RMB’000
F ARETFIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each & f&0.1 2 LB
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2012, RZE——F—H—H"
31 December 2012 and —E——%+—-_H=+—H
31 December 2013 N—_ZE—=%+=-_A=+—H 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid ordinary BBEITRHE
shares:
At 1 January 2012 R—_ZET——F—H—H 2,909,396 256,511
Issue of shares under share BB ETEZITZIRGD
option scheme (note) (K 7%) 1,575 128
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 R-ZZE——FM_ET—=4F
+-_FB=+—H 2,910,971 256,639

Note:

In July 2012, options were exercised to subscribe for 1,575,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$157,500
(equivalent to approximately RMB128,000) which was credited to
share capital. Approximately RMB3,052,000 has been transferred
from the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 3. These shares
ranked pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

W :—ZT——Ft A BREFBEABRB
171 B AR £ 3R B8 AN 2 51,575,000
WA XA (E B T 157,500 (16
B R AR ®¥128,000) & 30 5 A B
Ao B RIRM ESHT I A E AR
XK #H AR ¥3,052,000E & # & A
EEEERAEE ZSERHZER
ERAEESHTEEEMBETRG -
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27. Share Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of
the Company is governed by the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds
in the share premium are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiary of the Group, Bawang
Guangzhou. Transfers to the reserves are
approved by the board of directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang Beverage,
which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer
at least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting
prior year losses), as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital under the PRC
Company Law and the articles of association of
the entity. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to the
equity shareholder. No appropriation to statutory
reserves were made by the PRC subsidiaries
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, as they recorded losses for both years.

27. R AR f# 4 &)
(b) REEHEERASE

U]

(i)

(iii)
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27. Share Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ili) PRC statutory reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate to
their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International
Group Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired all the
equity interest of Bawang Guangzhou amounting
to US$12,500,000, which was previously held by
a company owned by the Controlling
Shareholders of the Group, at a consideration of
the same amount. Accordingly, the share capital
of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated and a
merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the operations
outside the PRC.

27. BN st 8 (@)

(b) EREHRRBZE(E)
(i) PEEERER(E)

(iv)

(v)

—RAEATREEBETRBER
BUAEFEMNEEB(M
) N EREBRER
BEANEENKER
2t 1) 1 5 B 1T FT AR
N EBEREERAR
N MEEITHBEITE
MEHRTBLREMRE
K H)25% o

& it 6 0

R=ZZTEZELHF+ = A
iy ol = B N/ B = B )
BANeEHEEREE
TR(HFEE) BER A A
NAZEEBKEXET
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2EHES(Z A B ER
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B

= —=

28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The directors of the Company approved a Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8
June 2009, the Company conditionally granted certain
Pre-IPO share options to the directors, senior
management and employees under this Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The exercise of these share options
would entitle two of the Company’s directors to
subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000 shares of the
Company, and forty of senior management and
employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company
and the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of
each share under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
either at par value of HK$0.1 (four people under this
tranche including two directors), or at HK$1.19,
representing a 50% discount to the offer price of
HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty eight people
under this tranche). Each option granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting period of
one to five years, commencing from the listing date
and the options are exercisable until 8 June 2019.

28. LR EEENW UMD A

BEHRR

(a)

/|

=
7
HR2PF %S KE

BEEeR _ZTZZTN\EFE+ A8
+HEEE XA AHAEERE
BEE - R_ZTZTAF N
BANB  ARABGKHEHIE
BERAREENERES
EmEE SRAEEENKE
FPEEEBETFTETHEARAAHRA
BERBERE - TELEE
BEER FARAIMBES
R B A QA4 4,200,000
B A R40B = REEE M
BERBARARGDAE X
10,332,000 % &9 #E A1) o 1R & 7
AR ESETEARTNR
FERE - BRXAAEEE
RIEFSE TSR MDT
EEAEEMESEIT01(AAE
-  EhaEmBES) K
BIL119 B2 BREET
EE BB T2.389:E50% (38
AT - REBEBH XA
EREREFERLENED
BhENSBHAABA LEMAH
HEs—FZRF AR
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 28. URELEEL URH A
(continued) ERNIRZ @
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@A) BROBEE AR E
i 8 ()
Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options BAXAAREESH ERES
Scheme are as follows: BT :
Number of Contractual
Date of grant instruments Vesting period life of options
B¥AH BREHE REY  BRESOY

Options granted

to directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BETEENERE: —ZThFA/\H —ETAFELA=ZHRBH—F T4
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZETAFSNANH ZETNFEA=ZHRBH=F T4
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEZAFRANH —ETAFLA=BRH=F T+
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
e A S AN =! ZETNFELA=HBFESF T4
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZETNAFARNANB ZETNFEA=ZHEBHAF T4

Options granted
to employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
ETEENERE: —ZTHFAANA —ETNFELA=ZHEBH—F T4
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZETNAFARNANB ZEENFLAZ-HRBHZF T4
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZETAFEXRANB —ETNFLA=ZHRBFH=F +4F
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
N A AN = —ERNFLA=HBFEOSF T
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEENFRNANA ZEENFELAZHRBHESF T

Total share options
granted 14,532,000
5T e IR e R B
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1 December 2013
A=+—BItFEE

28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The t
and a

hen sole shareholder of the Company approved
dopted a share option scheme on 20 May 2009 (the

“Share Option Scheme”).

On 26 July 2011, the Company conditionally
granted certain share options to two employees
under the Share Option Scheme (the “2011
Lot”). The exercise of these share options would
entitle the two employees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1,380,000 shares of the Company.
According to the grant letters signed by the
Company and the beneficial individuals, the
exercise price under the Share Option Scheme is
at HK$1.31 per share. Each option granted
under the Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to five years, commencing from the
date of joining the Group of the two employees
and the options are exercisable until 26 July
2021.

On 7 February 2012, the Company conditionally
granted certain share options to an employee
under the Share Option Scheme (the “2012
Lot”). The exercise of these share options would
entitle the employee to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company.
According to the grant letter signed by the
Company and the beneficial individual, the
exercise price is at HK$1.00 per share. Each
option granted has a vesting period of one to five
years, commencing from the date of joining the
Group of the employee and the options are
exercisable until 7 February 2022.

(b) W& Bx 42 &t &

ZIK/

AE-—KRRR_-_ZTFAN

FRH AT B EITEN
T ERER (B R AEST
2o

(i)
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions =1 n A

(continued) EBNRZ &)

(c) The following tables disclosed the movements of the (c) Ti% REHEZE T —=F+=
Company’s share options held by directors and =t—HLEFER=ZT—Z
employees for the years ended 31 December 2013 EJJ:E g%%&@,j—ﬁﬁﬁi%
and 2012: ZEE

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
at 1 January during during during 31 December during 31 December
Option type 2012 the year the year the year 2012 the year 2013
EhERR ®n iy ®
—E--fF —Eg-—F —E-=f%
—-A—A +=-ZA=+-H +=ZA=+-H
18 R AT 6 FRABE FREBTE FAERK MRTE FREEYR 8 RATHE
Pre-IPO Share Option B XA
Scheme BER
R 7,914,000 — (1,575,000) (493,000 5,846,000 (2,021,000 3,825,000
Share Option Scheme & i 1
— 2011 Lot — 20111358 460,000 - - (460,000) - - -
— 2012 Lot — 201217 %8 — 1,500,000 — (1,500,000 — — —
8,374,000 1,500,000 (1,675,0000  (2,453,000) 5,846,000 (2,021,000 3,825,000
Exercisable at theend 7 2 {5
of the reporting period R AT 7T {E )
Bk 1,231,000 2,251,000
Weighted average mET
exercise price (B HK$E7T0.54 HK$HET1.00 HK$ET0.10 HKS#ET1.10 HK$#7T0.60 HK$#ETT0.74 HK$#720.51
In respect of the share options exercised during the BHE_Z-—_F+_-_A=+—H

year ended 31 December 2012, the weighted average
share price at the date of exercise was HK$0.62.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.43
(2012: 6.43) years.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately RMB915,000 (2012: RMB1,951,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

LERE HH BT BRE R
171E B N F 1 RE /A TT0.62 °

R—_E—=%+_A=+—8"
8 A 17 1 B AR R /9 D0 A 15 R #4
AR ASA3FE(ZTE——FF:
6.434F) o

HE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—8H
FEFE AEEERAERENE
BEAABELARIHARE
915000( —E——FF : YARK
1,951,000) °
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(continued)

(c)

(continued)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on a binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

(#8)
BHBRELRBRRBEO AR
BEZ2ERLIBERENLAA
BEEAE - FLBRENR
AEEDER -EAKEGK
At BRENSNOFHANE
ZEWN G E 28 -

Weighted average fair value at measurement FEFEBEHMNEFY 2.0
date (HK$) BEGET)
Share price (HK$) & & (BT 2.268
Exercise price (HK$) TEE BT 0.10r3k 1.134
Expected volatility 8 B R 1@ 52.8%
Expected life of the options (in years) TEEIRE AR i & A (5F) 10
Expected dividend yield TE BRI AR B -
Risk-free interest rate = 2 f ) 2.84%

The expected volatility is based on the average of the
historical daily volatility of ten comparable companies
as of the grant date over the shorter of 10 years and
the period up to the listing date. Expected dividends
are based on management’s best estimate. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

BT R IR TH AR 5 R K £ E 47
ENTRABEBEERNBET
FERTAHEEMAEH
ZE(MEREE) NBEF
MEBRKEET - Bt E
EHEEEBEHORER
e THAEBENHER
YA BEBFEEAY
=,
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29. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company

29. 2N 1 B B I AR O R

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Unlisted investments RIEETHE A B M
in subsidiaries W& - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JE W K B A 7] 218 (@) 1,461,591 1,496,625
1,461,591 1,496,625
Current asset RBEE
Bank balances and cash RITEFRE S 718 1,034
Current liability REBEE
Other payables H b fE 1 5018 3,607 4,885
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (2,889) (3,851)
Total assets less current EELABERRBAER
liability 1,458,702 1,492,774
Net assets BEEFE 1,458,702 1,492,774
Capital and reserves EEREFE
Share capital fi% < 256,639 256,639
Reserves ER= (b) 1,202,063 1,236,135
Total equity e 1,458,702 1,492,774
Notes: B 5
(@  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not expected to be (a) ZRAR BEEI - FEERR (@

recoverable within the next twelve months.

AATgkE -
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29. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

29. 7K A B B & AR R 3R (8

Notes: (continued) MaE : (88)
(o)  Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: b REEFAZFERLOT
Share Capital Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RAHRE EEHE ERFEE eyt B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AR®TRT ARBFT ARETT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2012 RZE—=F
—H—H 1,351,690 9,676 (80,745) (83,069) 1,247,552
Share issued under 1R 15 B8 B 5T 2
share option scheme 1T H) A& 15
(note 27(a)) (ff7E27(0)) 3,052 (3,052) - - -
Recognition of W3R LA AR 45 B 30 DA
equity-settled f& 15 B E R
share-based
payments — 1,897 — — 1,897
Total comprehensive 2 YA (B2 ) 4228
income (expense) — — 910 (14,224) (13,314)
At 31 December 2012 AT — —4F
and 1 January2013 +—-A=+—HE
—ET—=fF
—H—H 1,354,742 8,521 (79,835) (47,293) 1,236,135
Recognition of T 58 LA AR 45 B 30 DA
equity-settled B 1D BB R
share-based
payments — 915 — — 915
Forfeiture of vested S8 M5 R B Y LA R A
equity-settled HEEIWARD B
share-based AW a3
payments — (2,893) — 2,893 —
Total comprehensive 2 [ ] 37 42 %8
expense — — (27,118) (7,869) (34,987)
At 31 December 2013 B —ZE—=4F
+-A=+— 1,354,742 6,543 (106,953) (52,269) 1,202,063
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30. Lease Commitments 30. FH A EIE
The Group as lessee XEEESEBA
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®T
Minimum lease payments paid under 1R B & & H Ot +# K iEF

operating leases in respect of land Bz &EHEERIE

and buildings during the year 5,906 5,343

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHmHBKR - NEE A A HE A
REBOZ AR ZEE S AYE
BB RMT -

2013 2012
—E-—= —_EF—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
Within one year —F LA 8,684 5,373
In the second to fifth years inclusive 25 ZF ZF £ R F
(BHEEREMEREAN) 14,371 6,449
Over five years HFEME 585 1,822
23,640 13,644

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its production premises and office.
Leases are negotiated for original terms ranging from 1 to
30 years (2012: 1 to 30 years). Rentals are fixed over the
terms of respective leases.

KReEHeREASEXNERR
FEREEBRASHONEESE
B HAKHGEZ REHRAN F—
FEZA+F(ZT—Z_FEF: —F
E=+F) HeAEKHEAOHRE
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31. Capital Commitments

Capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment at the end of reporting period not provided in the

31. EANEIE

REHFBR TEEMBHREKF
RROBEABEDE  BFE I&

consolidated financial statements were as follows: EHENAEZENT -
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt AREET T
Contracted for B4 14,764 30,050

32. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong in accordance with the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of the employees’ relevant
income to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Starting from
1 June 2012, the cap is revised to monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

32. R K & A aT &I H K

(a)

(b)

REXEE

RETBEEREHESR  +
BHBArR2EATEA
MEMRTEBEB ZE
B SR K18 A A 8 ([R5
B -ERAMERFARR
TEZ—FEADLLRAZKE
R EHWBRTEEEER
XNERBENZHERE -

FEEME

RiaeELEE (R
ME st &) /a0 &R
EAKBETASHRANE K
B ERERIBIE S A
glo-rEetdcEERN
SEHEMEESH AXFE
AEHzEEHB - A& H
BREBETIE 25%M®EE A
UK BARKATEBE
7020,0006) EfR - B = F —
“FEFRA-HBHE - ZFAKA
£ PR E /% T25,000 ° &t

SIHRENRRE -
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32. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions
(continued)

The Group has no other obligations for payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees
rather than the contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB4,693,000 (2012: RMB6,829,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

33. Related Party Transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties:

(@ The following balances were outstanding at the end of
the reporting period:

32. BRI T S HFR )

AREERT EAHEREES - L&
HEBRE IXNEKREEA
RIKIEREF o

BaikP 28I HARE
4693000(ZFE——FF: ARK
6,829,000) * B0 A & B 5t 52 F 5 &
FIEMm—TFEBEDLLEM 2K

3B.BEEAIRE
BEARBRESDOFRES
Oh REBED BT T EABRE
RS

@ RERPREAEMNZEH
s

Amounts due to related

parties
BEERRIE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTFT
Non-trade related kE S 1HE
Guangzhou Bawang (note (i) BMELT (M) 68 1,691
Guangzhou Bawang International & /1 8 T B B¢ A8 &
Hotel Co., Ltd. (‘Bawang Hotel”) AR A& ([BE XEE])
(note (ii)) (B 5 (ii)) = 1,421
Trade related g 3 10k
Guangzhou Chenming Paper BINTRBAADBRAR
Products Company Limited (TEM 288 1) (B &E (iii))
(“Guangzhou Chenming”)
(note (i) 1,374 978
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging EMmEReEME
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Guangzhou B A7 ([EME X))
Qiancai”) (note (i) (B = (iii)) 72 -
1,514 4,090
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

0] Guangzhou Bawang was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December
2013 and 2012, the balance due from Guangzhou Bawang mainly
represented rental payable. The balance was unsecured, interest-
free and repayment on demand.

(ii) Bawang Hotel was effectively 100% owned by the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December 2012, the
balance due from Bawang Hotel mainly represented prepaid
meeting and catering expenses (2013: nil).
unsecured, interest-free and repayment on demand.

The balance was

(iii) Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the
control of the close family members of the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Chenming
and Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, meeting
and catering services were provided to the Group by
Bawang Hotel amounting to approximately
RMB1,494,000 (2012: RMB1,986,000). The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, raw
materials were purchased from Guangzhou Chenming
amounting to approximately RMB9,243,000 (2012:
RMB9,077,000). The directors of the Company have
confirmed that the basis of consideration for the
purchase of raw materials is the prevailing market
price.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, raw
materials were purchased from Guangzhou Qiancai
amounting to approximately RMB698,000 (2012: nil).
The directors of the Company have confirmed that the
basis of consideration for the purchase of raw
materials is the prevailing market price.

3B.BEEARS &)
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, utilities
expenses were paid on behalf of the Group by
Guangzhou Bawang amounting to approximately
RMB2,369,000 (2012: RMB6,187,000).

The Group and Guangzhou Bawang had entered the
following lease agreements in relation to rental of
production premises and office building:

()  On 21 January 2011, Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into a renewed
production premise and office lease agreement,
pursuant to which Bawang Guangzhou leased
from Guangzhou Bawang the production premise
and office building with a total floor area of
16,735 square metres. The term of the lease
under the agreement is 3 years with a fixed
monthly rental payable of RMB184,083,
commencing from 4 December 2010. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, approximately
RMB552,000 (2012: RMB2,209,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the lease agreement was
terminated on 9 August 2013.

(i)~ On 1 January 2011, Bawang (China) Herbal Co.,
Ltd. (“Bawang Herbal’) and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into an office premise lease
agreement, pursuant to which Bawang Herbal
leased from Guangzhou Bawang the office
premise with a total floor area of 300 square
metres at nil consideration. The term of the lease
under the agreement is 20 years commencing
from 1 January 2011. Bawang Herbal was
dissolved on 11 December 2012 and
consequently, the lease agreement was
terminated.

B.HAEIRF @)
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(i)

(V)

On 28 December 2011, Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into an office
premise lease agreement, pursuant to which
Bawang Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou
Bawang the office premise with a total floor area
of 4,916 square metres. The term of the lease
under the agreement is 3 years with a fixed
monthly rental payable of RMB182,000
commencing from 1 January 2012. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, approximately
RMB1,321,000 (2012: RMB2,184,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the lease agreement was
terminated on 9 August 2013.

On 1 August 2012, Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into a production
premise lease agreement, pursuant to which
Bawang Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou
Bawang the production premise with a total floor
area of 123,000.1 square metres at nil
consideration. The term of the lease under the
agreement is from 1 August 2012 until it is
replaced by a revised lease agreement. On 9
August 2013, the lease agreement was
terminated.

On 9 August 2013, Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into lease
agreements, pursuant to which Bawang
Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou Bawang the
production plant and office premises at fixed
monthly rental of RMB1,120,000 and
RMB92,800, respectively. The terms of the lease
under the agreements are 3 years from 9 August
2013. Details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 9 August
20183. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
approximately RMB5,745,000 (2012: nil) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

B.HEAEIRF @)

(i)

(iv)
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(©),

As disclosed in note 1, the Controlling Shareholders
and Guangzhou Bawang undertook to provide a long-
term loan facility to the Group in an amount up to
RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15 March 2013 to
31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group did not draw down any amount under the
facility.

Subsequent on 23 January 2014 and 26 February
2014 respective amount of HK$9,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB7,515,000) and USD6,700,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB41,088,000) have
been drawn down by the Group. The long-term loans
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 29
November 2016 or earlier as determined by the Group.

As disclosed in note 24, the Controlling Shareholders
and Guangzhou Bawang, jointly provided a financial
guarantee to secure for the banking facility of
RMB80,000,000 granted to Bawang Guangzhou for a
period from 21 August 2012 to 7 August 2013. The
banking facility was lapsed following the settlement of
the bank loan during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

B.HEAEIRF @)

()  Compensation of key management personnel () ETEBEEABRM
The remuneration of key management personnel of the REBREANZTEEE A
Group during the years was as follows: BB &z mT
2013 2012
—E—= T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AR T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits  #H & -~ ZEBL MEF] 3,313 8,592
Contributions to retirement IRRAE A 5T 8 3K
benefits schemes 197 379
Equity-settled share-based DA NS # 45 E T AR 19
payment REBO R 530 1,511
4,040 10,482

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group was determined by the board of directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of notes (c), (f)(i), (f)iii)
and (f)(v) above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the “Report
of the Directors” section to the annual report. The related
party transactions in respect of notes (b), (d), (i), ((iv), (9)
and (h) above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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34. Contingent Liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Bawang
Beverage received a civil order issued by the People’s Court
of Songjiang District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai Court”)
regarding a lawsuit from a former subcontractor against
Bawang Beverage in relation to a claim of subcontracting
fee of approximately RMB1,332,000. Pursuant to the civil
order, the Shanghai Court accepted the application by the
former subcontractor for property attachment prior to
lawsuit to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in the
amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection with
the lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts with
an amount of approximately RMB309,000 has been frozen.
As of the date of this report, no judgment has been made by
the Shanghai Court.

Based on the opinion provided by the PRC legal counsel
acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage, the Group is unable
to predict the outcome of the case, or reasonably estimate a
range of possible loss, if any, given the current status of the
litigation. No accrual has been recorded by the Group as at
31 December 2013 in respect of the case.

34. FAREE
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35. Litigation

@

The Board considers that the contents of the relevant
article published by a media company on 14 July 2010
are defamatory to the Group and/or amount to
malicious falsehood. Therefore, the Group commenced
legal proceedings in the High Court of Hong Kong in
October 2010 against the media company seeking,
inter alia, damages and an injunction to restrain the
media company from publishing such contents or
similar contents. As of the date of this report, the legal
proceedings are in progress.

A lawsuit had been filed by a distributor against
Bawang Guangzhou in Guangzhou Baiyun District Law
Court (the “District Court”) whereby the distributor
alleged that Bawang Guangzhou was liable to pay an
outstanding reimbursement for the promotion fees of
approximately RMB6,413,000 pursuant to an
agreement entered into between it and Bawang
Guangzhou on 12 April 2010.

On 20 November 2013, the District Court issued a
verdict for the lawsuit whereby Bawang Guangzhou
was ordered to pay the distributor of an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB1,606,000 and a legal
cost of approximately RMB20,000. The distributor has
subsequently appealed to a higher court and the date
of hearing has not yet been fixed. As at 31 December
2013, an aggregate provision of approximately
RMB1,626,000 has been made by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Bawang
Guangzhou is a defendant in a legal action involving
the alleged software infringement. According to the
legal opinion, the total expected monetary
compensation may amount to approximately
RMB200,000 which Bawang Guangzhou is probable
to be liable. Accordingly, provision of RMB200,000 has
been made by the Group as at 31 December 2013 in
the consolidated financial statements.

35.
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36.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Place of Issued and

incorporation paid-up ordinary

36. T EME R T

at 31 RNR-E—=FE_FE——F+=
A=+—"BARAETEHEAQ A
EX RN

Proportion ownership interest and

Name and operation share voting power held by the Company Principal activities
BEETR KARFENERER
7518 MURKEwRE HREXR EENRERELLA TEXEK
2013 2012
—E—=F —E -4
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
B B "HiEZ &
% % % %

Forever Giants Limited BVI US$1 100 - 100 — Marketing and promotion
of household and personal
care products

REBELES EP EHEREERA R
8] A £ 32 EE G

Bawang International Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 — 100 Investment holding,

Group Holding (HK) advertising agency and
Limited trading of household and
personal care products

BIEREERZR HE BTt REER EERER

(BEB)BERRA EHERMERAR
B AEIRE R
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 — 100 Advertising agency and
International Trading trading of household and
Limited personal care products

EEBIBBRES N A BE BT B R N i R
KA RMEAERE @

Bawang Guangzhou The PRC US$67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of

(note a) household and personal
care products

FEEM(MEE) i 3 7167,500,000 HEREHEREERA
KA AR E @

Bawang Beverage The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 — 100 Trading of herbal tea

(note a) products

AR (@) FE 7 71.180,000,000 HERRE M
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36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

(@) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies
established in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the
Group. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

36. TEME R T (&)

BaE

(@) %Eﬁfﬁﬁ’\ﬁ@lﬁkiﬂﬁﬁ\‘?ﬁﬁﬁ
E’Jﬁf‘ﬁﬁﬁ
EFREVINEARARAESTRAEE
FEASEEXEXEENBELZ
MEBAR - ARAEEFTRABIEM
Htf B AR ZFIEH<TERB
RITEMmTERTR -

HEFLE-—FEHA HEAL
o] P B8 X B B T (AT B AR (A TS ©

X

%ﬁ%**@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
EmMESEEANZEMB R
ZEMBARIZEEEBH M ZZEI
T

Number of subsidiaries
MEAREHE
2013 2012

FTEX® EEER I —F—=F —ZT—-F
Investment holding BVI 2 2
BB REBRUES

Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REER i
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37. Comparative Figures

The presentation of comparative information in respect of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2012 has been restated in order to
disclose the discontinued operation separately from
continuing operations.

Also, the following comparative figures for continuing
operations have been reclassified to conform to current
year’'s presentation as the directors of the Company
consider the reclassification are more meaningful.

()  Bank interest income and net foreign exchange gain in
relation to continuing operations have been reclassified
from finance income to other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(i)  Gain on sales of scrap materials has been reclassified
from other expenses to other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As the reclassifications do not affect the consolidated
statement of financial position, it is not necessary to disclose
comparative information as at 1 January 2012.

37. LR EF

BT —-f+t=-A=t+—H
EFEzZRABRARMEE B
EEMEEKSERT & THR
BTYCENRI UBHELE
REHECRIEEXREORBE -
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REBE FIUHERSERE:
BMEHFZINATHEF -
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B A A Ko BE 3 U 58 % B
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E—= — T —T——% —T-TF —ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEBTT AREBTT ARETT AREBTRT ARETT
Results E45
Turnover B 478,380 555,955 888,909 1,475,355 1,756,001
(Loss) profit before AT (E18) & A
taxation (143,502) (534,964) (618,537) (134,131) 449,803
Taxation T IE - (82,605) 59,967 16,160 (85,659)
(Loss) profit for the year 7~ 2 &% A A FE1L
attributable to the ZERN(EE)
owners of i A
the Company (143,502) (617,569 (558,570) (117,971) 364,144
Assets and liabilities EE R & &
Property, plant and Y BE &
equipment 294,256 321,619 184,555 60.136 39,330
Prepaid advertising fee T8 & % B 123 1,454 3,875 2,437 6,081
Biological assets EYEE 170 142 1,297 — —
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E = - 82,605 27,089 -
Net current (liabilities)  RE (B E) EE
assets FE (29,346) 91,485 758,541 1,501,769 2,008,883
Total assets less current & 2 48 & & 7 &
liabilities & (& 265,203 414700 1,080,873 1,591,431 2,054,204
Deferred tax liabilites ~ ELEFEH A& & 2,031 2,031 2,031 2,031 20,062
Net assets EEEE 263,172 412,669 1,028,842 1,589,400 2,034,232
Capital and reserves ¥ A& 1%
Share capital f& 2 256,639 256,639 256,511 256,380 256,134
Reserves E 6,533 156,030 772,331 1,333,020 1,778,098
Total equity RHmE 263,172 412,669 1,028,842 1,589,400 2,034,232
(Loss) earnings per share & % (&5 18) & 7
Basic and diluted (RMB) £ 7K [ # &
(ANE#E) (0.05) (0.21) (0.19) (0.04) 0.15
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